
    
 

      

            

 

    

 

.........

.tt:•i EARLY LEARNING 
• · • • • COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

ELCHC Board of Directors Special 
Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021 at 1:00 pm 

6302 E. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Suite 100 Tampa, FL 33619 

Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88375287599?pwd=NHdmS0NZdzFXUjlZcG40eSswK1NBUT09 

Meeting ID: 883 7528 7599 

Passcode: 323954 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88375287599?pwd=NHdmS0NZdzFXUjlZcG40eSswK1NBUT09


Page 2 of 66

     

        

         

         

       

       

       

      

       
         

         
              

           
              
          
            

  

       

     
          
          

          
        

  

           

       

       
         

         
              

           
              
        

  

              

     

          

      

3:00

t!:•i EARLY LEARNING 
• · • • • COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

ELCHC Board of Directors Special Meeting

Tuesday, December 7, 2021

A. PatelI. WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS

II. PUBLIC COMMENT I

A. PatelIII. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

G. GilletteV. CEO REPORT

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT II

VIII. INFORMATION ITEMS

K. Minney

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ELCHC Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021 

A. PatelI. WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS 

A. Roll call/Quorum 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT I 
Individuals wishing to address the Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough 
County Board of Directors must complete a Public Comment Request 
Card and submit it to the official recorder prior to the noticed start time of 
the meeting. Said comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
individual on a first come, first serve basis, and only at such time as is 
identified on the official meeting agenda for public comment. All public 
comment in Public Comment I must pertain to an item on the approved 
agenda 

A. PatelIII. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
The “consent agenda” is a single agenda item typically addressed first 
after convening the board meeting and establishing that a quorum is 
present. The consent agenda encompasses all the routine, pro forma and 
noncontroversial items that the Board needs to vote on. 

G. GilletteV. CEO REPORT 

A. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Initiative Update 

B. Provider Review Hearing Process and Update 

C. Inspector General Fraud Training 

D. Holiday Event - Trains, Toys, & Tidings Update 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT II 
Individuals wishing to address the Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough 
County Board of Directors must complete a Public Comment Request 
Card and submit it to the official recorder prior to the noticed start time of 
the meeting. Said comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
individual on a first come, first serve basis, and only at such time as is 
identified on the official meeting agenda for public comment. 

VIII. INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Certificate of Acceptance and Compliance with City of Tampa - 3 K. Minney 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



Page 3 of 66

-------------Date: 

Certificate of Acceptance and Compliance with City of Tampa Code Section 2-525, 
Standards of Conduct and Accountability Requirements for Non-Profits Provided Financial Support by the City 

I The Board of Directors of HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SCHOOL READINESS COALITION, INC. D/B/A EARLY LEARNING 
COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY. (Non-Profit) hereby accepts that City financial support is conditional on compliance with the City 
Ethics Code and certifies that it has reviewed the requirements of City of Tampa Code Section 2-525 and any leases, operating agreements or other 
contracts or agreements between Non-Profit and the City and determined that the Non-Profit has fully complied with each applicable requirement, 
including the following requirements in City of Tampa Code Section 2-525: 

Required Policy Date of Adoption 

A. Conflict oflnterest Policy (paragraph 2-525(4)a and b) 

B. Anti-nepotism Policy (paragraph 2-525(4)c) 

C. Whistleblower Policy (paragraph 2-525(4)d 

II A. The total salary and benefits ofeach Executive Staff member and any affiliated corporate entities as required by paragraph 2-525(5)a. 2. & 3. 

Position: Name: Total Compensation: 

1. Chief Executive Officer: 

2. Financial accountability and controls: 

3. Facilities management and operations: 

4. Personnel and human resources: 

5. Development, marketing and/or public relations: 
B. Total amount of City Financial Support: 



Page 4 of 66

III This certification was approved for transmittal to the City of Tampa by an affirmative vote of the Board of Directors of the Non-Profit on 
the ___ day of _______________ ____ 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SCHOOL READINESS COALITION, 
INC. D/B/A EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH 
COUNTY 

Chair Legal Name ofEntity 

6302 E. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. Ste 100 Tampa, FL 33619 
Secretary Mailing Address 

Treasurer Contact Email Address & Telephone Number 



Page 5 of 66

Sec. 2-525. - Standards of conduct and accountability requirements for non-profits provided financial support by the city. 

(1) Purpose: The purpose of this section is to provide ethical guidance and enforceable requirements for each of the 

non-profits to which the city provides financial support. Partnerships with the private non-profit sector can be a 

valuable, cost-effective mechanism for delivering services and providing amenities for the people of the city. For this 

public-private partnership to be successful the city and the city's non-profit partners must recognize that adherence 

to high levels of transparency and ethics is essential. 

(2) Scope:This section of the Code shall apply to each and every non-profit that accepts twenty-five thousand dollars 

($25,000.00) or more in financial support from the city. The act of acceptance of this financial support by a non-profit 

shall constitute acceptance of the requirements of this section and agreement by the non-profit, its board members, 

and its executive staff to comply with each of the requirements of this section. Any transaction between the city and 

a non-profit subject to the requirements of this section shall be void if the non-profit refuses to accept or fails to 

substantially comply with the requirements of this section. The requirements of this section may not be waived by 

contract, resolution, or any act of any city officer or employee. 

(3) Definitions: 

Board of directors shall mean the governing body of the non-profit. 

Board member shall mean any member of the governing body of the non-profit. 

Executive staff shall mean the senior tiers of management of the non-profit. At a minimum, executive staff shall include the 

chief executive officer plus the individual(s) ultimately responsible for: 

a. Financial accountability and controls; 

b. Facilities management and operations; 

c. Personnel and human resources; and 

d. Development, marketing and/or public relations. 

Financial support: 

a. Financial support includes, but is not limited to, transactions of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) greater 

where the following occurs in support of a public purpose: 

1. Transfer or assignment of cash or a cash equivalent from the city to the non-profit, including distribution of 

funds under any state, federal or other governmental program administered by the city; 

2. Transfer or assignment of any interest in real property; 

3. Any agreement for use or operation by a non-profit of any real property owned or controlled by the city; 

4. Payment of any debt or debt service that is for the benefit of the non-profit; and 

5. Any other transaction where an item of value is made available to the non-profit in support of a public 

purpose. 

b. Financial support does not include: 

1. Any transaction in which an item of value less than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) is transferred or 

assigned by the city to the non-profit. 

2. Payments made by the city pursuant to a contract for goods or services that have been procured through a 

competitive process. Any contract with a non-profit that was a sole source procurement or otherwise for 

goods or services not procured through a competitive process shall be presumed to be financial support. 

3. Goodwill, advertising, sponsorship (including city services), promotional consideration, and in-kind support 

not otherwise specified herein as an item of value. 

4. Any one-time transaction in which an item of value other than cash is transferred or assigned by the city to a 

������������ ��� 	 
��������������������̆�̆ �̌̂  

��  



Page 6 of 66

non-profit, and that follows the city's existing policy for making such transfer or assignment. 

5. Funding in the form of an award made by the city pursuant to a state or federal grant program that is subject 

to other reporting, monitoring, or audit requirements. 

6. Payments made as a result of a special assessment services agreement, municipal services or other service 

agreement, where specific services are provided and invoices are submitted to the city by the non-profit on a 

reimbursement basis subject to review and approval by the city. 

7. Funding provided to any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or entity, whether or not said agency 

or entity is designated as a section 501 entity under the Internal Revenue Code. 

Item of value shall include payment of any debt, any interest in real property, stocks, intellectual property rights, royalties, 

bonds, insurance or insurance coverage, cash, and other valuable personal property. 

Non-profit shall include all entities designated as non-profit by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service under section 501 of the 

Internal Revenue Code, or any not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida or other state law. 

(4) Obligations of the non-profit, board of directors, and executive staff: 

a. The board of directors shall adopt a conflict of interest policy applicable to all board members and executive staff 

that shall prohibit the following: 

1. Any transactions between the non-profit and a board member or executive staff which may inure to the 

personal financial benefit of a board member, executive staff, or the immediate family of a board member or 

executive staff, except: 

i. After an open and competitive process and full disclosure of the transaction and the relationship to the 

board member or executive staff; 

ii. When any personal financial benefit would be de minimus or limited solely to good will or other 

speculative benefits; or 

iii. Executive staff compensation for employment by the non-profit. 

2. Employment by executive staff with an entity directly or indirectly competing with the non-profit. 

b. The board of directors shall adopt a policy prohibiting transactions with any for-profit entity affiliated with, 

owned by, or employing a board member or executive staff or the immediate family of a board member or 

executive staff, except: 

1. After an open and competitive process and full disclosure of the transaction and the relationship to the 

board member or executive staff; and 

2. When any financial benefit to the for-profit entity would be de minimus or limited solely to good will or other 

speculative benefits. 

c. The non-profit board of directors shall adopt an anti-nepotism policy, except in the case where the non-profit is a 

family trust or foundation. 

d. The non-profit board of directors shall adopt a whistleblower policy that, at a minimum, shall include a method 

to allow any employee to bring to the attention of the non-profit's designated ethics officer any actions that 

violate federal, state, or local laws or established non-profit policies regarding personnel, finance, ethics, and 

asset management. 

e. The non-profit board of directors shall endeavor to have a diverse board and shall not discriminate in the 

recruitment or selection of board members, except in the case where the non-profit is a family trust or 

foundation. 

f. The board of directors, board members, and executive staff shall not enter into any arrangement involving any 

form of kickbacks. 

������������ ��� 	 
��������������������̆�̆ �̌̂  

��  



Page 7 of 66

(5) Reporting and recordkeeping requirements: 

a. Each non-profit shall annually file with the city finance director: 

1. A statement, in substantially the form provided in the attached certification, approved by the board of 

directors certifying on behalf of the non-profit compliance with this section and compliance with any leases, 

operating agreements or other contracts or agreements between the non-profit and the city, 

2. Total compensation provided by the non-profit, and any of its affiliated entities, to each executive staff 

member, 

3. Total amount of city financial support. 

b. Each of the items in paragraphs (5)a. shall be filed annually on or before April 1 for the prior calendar year. 

c. The board of directors of the non-profit shall keep accurate written minutes of all meetings of the board of 

directors, all meetings of the executive committee and any meetings of committees designated to address ethics, 

finances, or compensation of executive staff. These minutes must include recordation of all votes of each 

individual board member on all actions of the board of directors where the action of the board of directors is not 

unanimous, and shall be made available to the city upon receipt of written request. 

d. Each non-profit shall maintain the following documents and provide any or all of the documents within seven (7) 

days of a request by the city finance director: 

1. Copies of the policies and procedures demonstrating the non-profit's compliance with this section, and 

2. Copies of records documenting compliance with non-profit policies and procedures required by this section, 

and 

3. List of all board members and executive staff and contact information for each, including address and phone 

number, sufficient for the city to directly contact the each board member and executive staff member, and 

4. List of all transactions approved by the board of directors pursuant to the policies required by paragraphs 

(4)a. and b., including the persons or business entities involved in the transactions, the nature of the 

transactions, the nature of the relationship(s) that implicated paragraphs (4)a. orb, the dollar amount of the 

transaction, and the date of the board of directors approval of the transaction, and 

5. Copies of all Form 990 and related schedules filed with the Internal Revenue Service and any additional filings 

regarding related party transactions as defined by the Internal Revenue Code. 

e. In the event any violation of this section becomes known to the non-profit board of directors or executive staff, a 

report shall be filed with the city finance director not more than fifteen (15) days after the violation becomes 

known to the board of directors or executive staff. 

(6) Enforcement: 

a. The city shall have the right to audit all records and inspect all assets of the non-profit as necessary to determine 

compliance with this section and any other terms or conditions of any grant agreement, contract, lease, deed, or 

other agreement with the city. 

b. In the event the city becomes aware that a non-profit has failed to comply with any aspect of this section, the city 

shall provide notice in writing to the non-profit board of directors. If the non-profit fails to cure a material failure 

to comply with this section within sixty (60) days of written notice of the material failure, the non-profit shall: 

1. Refund all city financial support provided in the city's fiscal year within which the non-profit failed to comply 

with this section; and 

2. Be barred from applying for or receiving financial support from the city for a period of one (1) year; and 

3. In no event shall the non-profit receive financial support from the city until the non-profit has demonstrated 

full compliance with this section. 

������������ ��� 	 
��������������������̆�̆ �̌̂  

�̇  



	 
��� �
The sixty-day period for cure of a material failure to comply with this section may be extended for two (2) 

additional thirty-day periods by the city finance director. 

(7) Effective date:This section shall be effective upon becoming law. This section shall apply to all transactions on or 

after the effective date, but shall not be construed to impair contracts effective and in force prior to the effective 

date. 

(Ord. No. 2010-153, § 1, 10-21-2010; Ord. No. 2012-8, § 1, 1-19-2012) 

������������ ��� �����������������̆ ˘̌�̂  

Page 8 of 66
 �  



Page 9 of 66

' EARLY LEARNING 
• / • COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

Updated Aprll 2021 

Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough County, Inc. 
6302 E. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. Suite 100 Tampa, 

Florida 33619 

Phone: (813) 515-2340 

/}A/ /.. ~~.::. '-f P.3/t..l 
.Go..J~ l G~ l\, tl'-

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 1 



Page 10 of 66

EARLY LEARNIN G COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

Welcome to the Early Learning Coalition! We are delighted that you have chosen to join our 
organization and hope that you will enjoy a long and successful career with us. As you become familiar 
with our culture and mission, we hope you will take advantage of opportunities to enhance your 
career and further ELCHC's goals. 

This handbook is intended to give you a broad summary of information you should know about the 
Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough County. The information in this handbook is general in nature; 
should questions arise, consult your supervisor, Human Resources or the CEO. While we intend to 
continue the policies, rules and benefits described in this handbook, The Early Learning Coalition, in 
its sole discretion, may always amend, add to, delete from or modify the provisions of this handbook 
and/or change its interpretation of any provision set forth in this handbook at any time. Only Human 
Resources is authorized to issue interpretations, subject to the CEO's approval. Please do not hesitate 
to speak to Human Resources if you have any questions about the Coa lition or its personnel practices. 

OUR VISION 

Early Learning Coalit ion of Hillsborough County vision is that all Hillsborough County ch ildren will grow 
up in a safe, supportive, and nurturing environment. 

OUR MISSION 

The Early Learning Coalition of Hillsborough County provides children, birth to 5 years, high quality, 
equitable and inclusive early learning experiences preparing them for success in school and life 
through the collaboration of families, educators and the commun ity 

OUR CORE VALUES 

Integrity 
Consistency 

Transparency 
Accountability 

Innovation 
Benevolence 
Collaboration 

This handbook and subsequent updates wi ll be dist ributed and/or available to all employees. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 2 



Page 11 of 66

WE STAND FOR EQUITY 

The death of George Floyd has placed a spotlight on the long distance that our community has to 
travel to reach true equity, diversity and inclusion. In the important mission that our organization 
performs in our community in promoting school and life success for ALL young children and their 
families through quality school readiness services and supports, it is important that we lead by 
providing clarity to our beliefs and values with a high degree of specificity at this time. We have zero 
tolerance for racism and we believe in and will behave in ways that demonstrate that, as it relates to 
our: 

Community: 

• Black lives matter 
• Equity, Diversity and Inclusion as relates to race, gender, and sexual orientation matter 
• We recognize that our communities have a long journey ahead to reach true equity, diversity and 

inclusion - We are committed to take that journey 
• Change to ensure we live these values: is needed, is not optional, is not an event but a journey, 

requires courage, and starts with us and what we teach our children 

Families and Children: 

• All children are equal and deserve an equal opportunity to receive quality care and education 
• All parents deserve to be and will be treated with equal respect 

Providers: 

• Our providers are key to meeting our overall mission - we will treat each of our providers with 
equal respect 

• We will incorporate our beliefs in equity, inclusion and intolerance of all forms of racism in our 
teachings, trainings, and all interactions with all providers - teachers, directors and owners 

Team: 

• Our team members are our most important asset and deserve to work in a workplace in which 
each team member: 

• is treated with dignity, respect and feels valued 
• has equal opportunities to pursue their career and advance within the organization 
• We will hire the best candidate for every open position, with efforts to ensure our team and 

leadership reflects the diversity of the community we serve 

As the leader of our team, I am committed to lead and require that all our leaders and team members 
to live these values every day. 

Gordon L. Gillette, Chief Executive Officer 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 3 



Page 12 of 66

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY ... .. ....... .. ....... .. ............ .. .... .. ............ 2 

WE STAND FOR EQUITY ............................................................................................. .. .... .... ... ........... 3 

GENERAL POLICIES............. .................................................................. ............. .. .. ..... ... .. ...... .. ........... 6 
Policy Reviews .. .. ................. .. ........ ........... .. .... ............... .. .. .... ..... .... ... ............. ..... .. .. .. .. ..... ...... ... ......... .. .. .................. ...... ..... 6 

Administrat ion ...... .. ....... ............. ...... ...... .. ............. ..... ... .. .......... ... .. ....... ... .. .... ... .............. .. ........ ............. .............. .. ...... .... .. 6 

Appl icability ........ ... ...................... ...... ......... .... ........ .. .. .. ............... .... ................................. .. .. .. .. .. ..... ................... .. .. .. ...... ..... 6 

Equal Employment Opportunity ........ .. ... ............. .. ... .. ...... .. ........ .. .. ........ .......... .. ............ .............................. .. .. .......... .... .. 6 

Ame ricans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodation .. .. .. .......... ... ... ... .. .......... .. .. ........ ..... ........ ... .. .. 6 

Reasonable Accommodation of Religious Beliefs .......... .. ........ .. ... ... .. .... ...................... ...... ....... ...... ............ ..... ........ .. .. ... 7 

Commitment to Diversity .. .. ..... .. .......... .. .. .... .. ....... .. ... .. .. .. .. ........ .. ... .......... .. .... .. .. ....... ...... .. .... ........... ..... .. .. ... ... .. ........ .. ..... .7 

Non•Discrimination and Harassment-Free Workplace .. .. ...... .. .... .. ... .. ... .. .......... ..... .. .... ... ............ ................. .. ................ 7 

Confl ict Resolution ......................... .. ....... .. .............. .... .............. ... .. ............ .. ........ ... ...... .. ..... ....... .... .. ... ........ ....... ...... .......... 8 

Conflict of Interest. Ethical Standards and Polit ica l Activity .. .. .. ..... ..... .. .. ........ .. .. ...... .. .... .. ..... ..... .. .. ....... ...... .. .. .. .. ........ ..9 

Employee Hotline ......... ............. ......... ...... .. ......... .. .. .. .. .... ............... .. ........ ....... .. .. ... .... ..... ....... .... ... ... .. ... .. ........... .. .... .. .. .... 11 

Wh ist le Blower: Reporting Violations of Law ........ .. ... ..... ........... .. ......... .. .. ... .. ... ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ............... .. .......... .... .11 

Social Media Policy .. .. .. .. ..... ... ..... .. .. ..... .. .. ..... .. ............... .. ...... .. .. ..... .. .. .. ......... .. .. ........... .. ... .. ... ..... ... .. ... ................... ..........12 

Communication System and Use ........... ........... ... ................................................ ........................ .. .... ...... .. .. .. ...... ........ ... 14 

Child Abuse and Neglect ............... ... .. ..... ................................. .. ........................... ....................... ....... .............................17 

Confidentiali ty .. .. ... .. .. ... .... ........ .. .... .......... ......... ... .. ..................................................................... .. ................................17 

Media Interaction .. ........... ... .. ....... ..... .... . ....................... ..................... ........................... .. ........ .. .. ..... ............................ .. 18 

Persona l Property .... .. .. .. .. ...... ... .. ...... ........... ........ .. ................................................... .. ........ .. ..... .... ... .. ... ........................... 18 

Parking .. ... .. ............. ...... .. ... ........... .. ..... ... ........................................................................................... .. ..... ......................... 18 

Care of Equipment, Supplies and Materials ................. .. ....................................................................................... ......... 18 

Job Posting ... ........ .. .. ............... .. ... ... ....... ............................ ............................................................ .. ... ... .. ................ .......... 18 

Dress Code ........... ... .... .. ..... ....... .... .. ... .. .. .................................................... .. .. .................... ................ ...............................18 

Employment of Family Members ... .. .... .. .. .. .......... ......... ...... .. ................... ...................... .. ............. .. ................................19 

Worksite Breastfeeding .......... .. .. ... .... .. ....................... .. ..... ....... .. ...... ............... .. .................. ........... .. ....... .. .......................20 

COMMITMENT TO SAFETY ....... ................. ... ............... .. .... .... ... .. .......................................... .. ... .... .. 21 
Genera l Safety Rules ............... .. .. ........ .. ............ .. ....... ...... .......... .. ... ................... .. .. ..... ... .. ... .. .. .. .. .................. ......... ........ .. 21 

Workers' Compensation ........ .. .... ........ .. .. .. .... .... .. ..... .. .. ......... ..... .. .. .. ......... ..... .. ........ ........... ....... .. ..... .............. .. .. ........ ... .. 21 

Workplace Violence ........ ............ ............. ... ... .. ......... ...... ........ ....... .... ......... ...... .. ................ ....... ..... .............. .. .. .. ... ........... 22 

Active Shooter ........ ....................... .......... .. .. ........... .. ...... .......... .. .. ... .. .. ................... ...... ......... .... .. .. ... .... .... ... ........... . , .. .... ... 23 

Drug-Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace .............................. ..... ..... ........... .. .. .. ... ........ .. .... ............................. .. .... .. ... ....... 23 

Smoke•Free Workplace .. ... ........ ..... .. ...... ... ............. .. .. .. .............. .. .. ..... .............. .. .. .. .. ... ... .. .. ............. .. ............ .. ... ....... .... .. 24 

Vehicle Safety ...................................... .. .................... ..... ........... ..... .. .. ..... ... .... .. .. ... .. .. ...... .... ............................ ...... ..... .. ... .. 24 

Weapons ..................................................... ... .... .................... ........ ... .... ..... ... .. ... ............... .. ..................... .. .. ......... ... .. ... ..... 25 

Visitors at Work ....... ................... ............ .. ........ ........ .. ... .. ... ........ ... ... .. ..... .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ...... ...... ...................................... .. ... ... 25 

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS AND WORKING CONDITIONS ..... ......... .. ....................... .... ....... ... 27 
Employee Classifications ....... ................. .. ............... ... .. .................................... ... .. .. ......... ........................................ ...... .. 27 

Introductory Period .............. ..... .. .... ...... ....... .. ... ........ .. ...... ... ........... .. .. ........ .. ... .. ................ ....... ...................... ...... ... .. ... ... 27 

Scheduled Work Week and Time-Keeping .... .. ......... .. ..... .. .. .. ....... ................... .... ........ ..... ................................... ........ ... 27 

Attendance and Punctuality ................... .......... .. ....... .. ...... .. ............. ................ .............. .... ... .. , ........ ....... ........ .. .. .. ... .... ... 28 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 4 



Page 13 of 66

Time Sheets............ ........ ............... .............. ....... ......•................... ........................................... ..... .. ............................ .......28 
Pay Periods....... .............. ................. .. ..................... .. ................................................... ........... ................. .. ........................29 
Direct Deposlts......................................... ...... .. .. ................. ...... .... ............................ ............................. ....... ....................29 
Pay Deductions .................. ................... ................. .................... ............................................... .. ................. ........... ..... .....29 
Garnishment/Child Support .............................................................................................. .. .. ................. .... ... ............ ..... .29 
Exempt Employees: Authorized Deductions..... ............................ .. .. ..................................... .. .................................... .. 29 
Longevity Payments ........................... .. ................. .............. ..... ........... ....... ... .... ............................................................... 30 
Reimbursement of Work Expenses ... ..................... ................................................ ............ ...................... ....... ..... ... .......30 
Professional Development Activities ...... ............ ......... ....... ............ ................... ...... ......................... .... ....... ................... 31 
Tuition Reimbursement Policy ........ .. .. ............... .. .. .. ................. .................. ......... .. .... .. .. .. .. .. ................ ...... .....................31 
Professional Organization Affiliation ..................... ................... .......................... .. .. .. .. ............ ................. ..... ................. .32 
Employment and Background Checks..................... .................. ... ... .. ... ......... ....... ..... ............ .......................... .. .. ........... 32 
Appointment Authority .. ... ............ .. .. ....... .... ......... .. .................. ......................... ............ ........................... .... ........ ........ .. .32 
Performance Evaluations........................... ........... ................ ... .. .................... ............ ...... .. .... ... .................. .. ................. .. 32 
Telecommutlng .... ............... .. ............. ................. ......... ................. ....... .. ..... ...................... .. .. ........ ..... ........ .............. .. ..... .. 33 
Corrective Action/ Separation ... ........ ...... ..... .............. ................................ ......... .. .. .. .... .. ... .. ....... .. .. ... .. ........................... 35 
Voluntary Separation ....... .. .. ............... .................. ...... .............. ... .. .. .. ......... ........ ..... ......... ........ ............... .. ................... ... 36 
Exit interviews .................. .... ............................ ........ ... ................... ..... ..... ....... .......... .... ............ .. ... .. .. ...... .........................36 
Employee Personnel Records......................... ...... ............................. .. ....................................... .... .. ... ............................ 36 
References............................ .. .............. .. .. .................... .......... .. ....... .. ...................................... ...... ......... .......................... .37 

PAID TIME OFF AND AVAILABLE LEAVE .................................. .. ..................... ... .............. ............... 38 
Paid Time Off........ ........... ...................... .. .. ............. ...... ... .. ........................... ......... ...... ..... .................... .......................... ...38 
Holidays ....... .... .. .. ............. ..................... ...... ............. .... ..................... ............ .. ....... ............. ............. .... ...................... .......38 
Bereavement Leave .. .............. ........ ............ ..... ...... ............................ ........ ... .. ...... ... .. .. .... .................... ...... ......... ....... .. ... ..39 
USERRA - Leave of Absence for Uniformed Service...................................... ...... ...... .... ....... .. .. .. ........... ........................39 
Civil Air Patrol Leave ...... ..... ....................................... .. ..................... ............ .......................... .. ....... .. .... .. ....... .......... ........ 39 
Paid Parental Leave Policy ... ............ .. ........................... .... ............... ........... ....................... .... ..... ... ............... .... ......... ......40 
Family and Medical Leave .... ............................. .. ..... ..................... ........ ........................ .... .. ........ ......... .. ...... .............. .. ....41 
Jury Duty .................. ............... .................................... .................... ... .. ....... ........ ..................... .. ..... .. .................................51 
Domestic Violence Leave .... .... ........................ .. ...... .. .... ..................................... .............................. .... ............. ............ .. .51 
Employment While on Leave .............. ................... ...................... .. .... ............ ............ .. ... ... .. ................... ... .. .. ... .. .... ........ .52 
Emergency Closings.............. ... ..................................... .................................. ... ......................... ................... .................. .53 

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS .......... ..... .. ....... .............. .. .. ....... ........ .................. 54 
Insurance Plans................................................. .................................. ........... ..... ................................. .......................... ...54 
Employee Assistance Program ................ .... ............ ................... ............................................ .. ....................................... 54 
COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconcil iation Act) .... ......... .. .............. ................. ........... ... .. .. ........................55 
Retirement. ........ .. .... .. .... .......... ... .......... ............ ......... .. .... ...... .. .. ..... ............ ..... ... ............ ........... ........... ...................... .......55 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT RECEIPT OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK...................................... ... ....... 56 

COVID ADDENDUM ..... .................................. ................................................................................... 57 

BALANCED SCORECARD ADDENDUM .................... ...................... ... .. ......................... .... ................58 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 5 



Page 14 of 66

GENERAL POLICIES 

Policy Reviews 
The School Readiness Coalition of Hillsborough County, doing business as the Early Learning Coalition 
of Hillsborough County, Inc. ("ELCHC"), is responsible for the establishment, amendment and/or 
repeals of personnel policies and shall review such policies, no less frequently than every two fiscal 
years. The contents of this Employee Handbook (EH) are presented as guidelines for some of the 
ELCHC's current policies and procedures and they will be changed and updated by the ELCHC, when 
necessary and at its discretion. Nothing in this EH shall create a contract between the ELCHC and any 
employee, nor shall it affect the "at-will" nature of an employee's employment. All employees are 
employed "at-will," meaning either they or the ELCHC can terminate the employee's employment at 
any time, with or without reason. All employees must sign an Acknowledgement Receipt form attesting 
to the receipt of the EH and their willingness to comply with all the EH personnel practices. 

Administration 
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed by the ELCHC Board and serves at the Board's pleasure 
and subject to the provisions of any employment contract. The CEO is responsible for the 
implementation of the personnel policies and may delegate authority for specific functions at his/her 
discretion or as indicated in these policies. Unless otherwise stated, the CEO has the authority to 
execute all personnel actions authorized in these policies, subject to budgetary constraints and 
applicable federal and state laws or administrative regulations. The CEO, or his/her designee (referred 
to hereafter as the "CEO/OHO"), may make an exception to policy, if extraordinary circumstances are 
present. Employees will be provided with relevant resources, as needed. 

Applicability 
These personnel policies are applicable to all employees. 

Equal Employment Opportunity 
The ELCHC is an Equal Opportunity Employer. The ELCHC maintains and enforces a policy that 
prohibits discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, sexual 
orientat ion, gender identity or expression, race, age, color, disability, marital status, national origin, 
re ligion, genetic information, protected veteran or military status, or other category protected by 
federal, state or local law. This policy extends to all aspects of the ELCHC's practices, including but not 
limited to, recruiting, hiring, firing, promoting, transferring, compensation, benefi ts, train ing, leaves of 
absence, and all other terms and conditions of employment. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodation 
It is ELCHC's policy to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Amendments Act. If a 
qualified individual with a disability needs an accommodation to perform the essential functions of the 
job, the ELCHC will work with that individual to identify and implement a reasonable accommodation, 
so long as it does not pose an undue hardship. If you need an accommodation, please contact Human 
Resources with your request. Please keep in mind that your request may require information from 
your physician substantiating your disability and the need for an accommodation and information 
about what accommodation might enable you to perform the essential functions of the job. To the 
extent that the ELCHC requests medica l information in connection with any request for an 
accommodation, it is our intention to comply with the Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act. 
If you request information from a medical provider to be provided to us, we ask that you include 
the following notice in your request to the provider: The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 6 



Page 15 of 66

2008 (GINA) prohibits employers and other entities covered by GINA Title II from requesting or requiring 
genetic information of an individual or family member of the individual, except as specifically allowed by 
this Jaw. To comply with this law, we are asking thatyou not provide anygenetic information when responding 
to this request for medical information. "Genetic information" as defined by GINA, includes an individual's 
family medical history, the results of an individual's or family member's genetic tests, the fact that an 
individual or an individual's family member sought or received genetic services, and genetic information of 
afetus carried by an individual or an individual's family member or an embryo lawfully held by an individual 
or family member receiving assistive reproductive services. 

Reasonable Accommodation of Religious Beliefs 
The ELCHC recognizes the importance of sincerely held religious beliefs to persons within its 
workforce. The ELCHC will reasonably accommodate a staff member's religious beliefs unless the 
accommodation creates an undue hardship. Employees requesting a workplace accommodation 
based on sincerely held religious beliefs should contact Human Resources. 

Commitment to Diversity 
The ELCHC is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace in which all employees have an 
opportunity to participate and contribute to the success of the business and are valued for their skills, 
experience, and unique perspectives. This commitment is embodied in ELCHC policy and the way we 
do business at ELCHC and is an important principle of sound business management. 

Non-Discrimination and Harassment-Free Workplace 
The ELCHC also maintains and enforces a policy that prohibits discrimination and harassment of 
employees. 

We value all employees as unique individuals, and we welcome the variety of experiences they 
bring to our company. As such, we have a strict non-discrimination policy. We believe everyone 
should be treated equally regardless of race, sex, gender identification, sexual orientation, 
national origin, native language, religion, age, disability, marital status, citizenship, genetic 
information, pregnancy, or any other characteristic protected by law. 

Our employees are entitled to a workplace where they can achieve their full potential. 
Discrimination and/or harassment detracts from that environment. When an employee is 
discriminated and/or harassed because of sex, sexual orientation, gender Identity or 
expression, race, age, color, disability, marital status, national origin, religion, genetic 
information, protected veteran or military status, or other category protected by federal, state 
or local law, it is a violation of law and also of the ELCHC's policy. 

The ELCHC will not tolerate discrimination or harassment In the workplace. 

Unwelcome conduct based on sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, race, age, color, 
disability, marital status, national origin, religion, genetic information, protected veteran or military 
status, or other category protected by federal, state or local law, that materially interferes with an 
employee's job performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment is 
prohibited. Such conduct may include sexual propositions or innuendos, suggestive comments, 
teasing or jokes based on race, sex, disability, religion or other protected category, obscene or 
offensive language or gestures, display of obscene or offensive materials, or physical conduct. It is 
also unlawful and a violation of company policy for a supervisor or anyone in a position of authority 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 7 



Page 16 of 66

to base any employment decision on submission to or rejection of unwelcome sexual advances or 
requests for sexual favors, or on impermissible factors such as race, disability, religion or other 
protected category. 

In addition, while many unprofessional behaviors may not rise to the level of harassment under the 
law, they can be as destructive as harassment. Such behavior may include rude, insulting or 
demeaning comments or behavior; or threatening, intimidating, coercing or bullying comments, 
gestures or behavior; or otherwise interfering with the job performance of coworkers or other third 
parties. Such behavior is a violation of the ELCHC"s policy and will not be tolerated. Employees are 
expected to be always respectful and professional to coworkers and third parties. 

Complaint Procedure 
The ELCHC's policy requires that employees promptly report discrimination and harassment. If you 
believe you have been the victim of discrimination or harassment. or have witnessed discrimination 
or harassment. you should immediately notify Human Resources or the CEO/OHD. In addition, the 
ELCHC encourages you to tell a harasser to stop, and that his or her behavior is unwelcome and 
offensive. 

The ELCHC will conduct a prompt and appropriate investigation of each discrimination or harassment 
complaint. If discrimination or harassment has occurred, the ELCHC will take steps to stop the 
discrimination or harassment, and will take disciplinary action against the person responsible, which 
may include immediate termination of employment. 

Employees are required to cooperate in the ELCHC's investigation of any complaint of harassment, 
discrimination or other workplace issue. 

No Retaliation 
The ELCHC will not allow retaliation against an individual who makes a good faith report of 
harassment or discrimination, or against anyone who participates in an investigation of such a report 
in accordance with this pol icy. 

If an employee feels he/she/they has been subjected to any such retaliation, he/she/they should 
immediately notify Human Resources and/or escalate within the organization as appropriate. 

Violation of this policy, including any improper retaliatory conduct, will result in disciplinary action, up 
to and including discharge. 

Conflict Resolution 
The ELCHC respects and acknowledges misunderstandings and frustrations may arise in the 
workplace. The ELCHC will seek a resolution that embodies principles of equality, respect and 
accessibility. 

Not every problem can be resolved to everyone's total satisfaction, but only through understanding 
and discussion of mutual problems can employees and management develop confidence in each 
other. This confidence is important to the operation of an efficient and harmonious work 
environment. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 8 



Page 17 of 66

If an employee believes that a condition of employment or a decision affecting them is unjust or 
inequitable, the employee is encouraged to first notify his/her immediate supervisor. If the supervisor 
is unavailable or if the employee believes it would be inappropriate to complain to the supervisor, the 
employee should contact Human Resources. No employee will be penalized, formally or informally, 
for making a good faith complaint. 

If your supervisor or Human Resources is unable to resolve the conflict to your satisfaction, you may 
bring the matter to the attention of the CEO/OHD. 

If your concerns involve harassment, discrimination, threatened violence, or a violation of a law, rule 
or regulation, you must immediately report the matter to Human Resources or the CEO/OHD. You 
may also contact the Employee Hotline at (813) 280-0799 ext. 422. 

Conflict of Interest, Ethical Standards and Political Activity 
The allocation and administration of public funds requires the promotion and maintenance of both 
the substance and appearance of objectivity and integrity. Employment with the ELCHC obl igates the 
employee to accept certain restrictions on political activities which may not be present with other 
employers. The provisions of this section are also applicable to all temporary and seasonal employees 
and contract personnel. 

Employees shall disclose to the CEO/OHD all actual or potential employment, board memberships, 
appointments or activities which may possibly constitute or reasonably be presumed to constitute a 
conflict of interest, compromise objectivity or restrict job performance. In addition: 

• Employees may not serve on the governing board of any agency or organization, which 
is an applicant or recipient of the ELCHC funding. 

• Employees shall promptly terminate or decline any employment, Board memberships, 
appointments or activities deemed by the CEO/OHD to constitute a real or perceived 
conflict of interest, compromise of objectivity or interference with their ability to 
perform the duties of their position in a timely and/or efficient fashion. 

• If the employee disagrees with the determination of the CEO/OHD he/she/they may 
dispute the decision through Conflict Management and Resolution Procedure outlined 
in this handbook. 

• If at any time an employee engaged in a previously approved employment, board 
membership, appointment or activity becomes aware of any change in the 
circumstances and/or conditions which justified the original approval of the activity or 
any new condition or circumstance that may constitute or give rise to the perception 
of conflict of interest or compromise of integrity, the employee shall immediately notify 
the CEO/OHD. The CEO/OHD shall then review the situation to re-determine the 
appropriateness of the employee's continued involvement. 

• The ELCHC expects its employees to observe the highest standards of business ethics. 
The ELCHC wants to avoid any perceptions of conflicts, as well as actual conflicts. 
Employees will exhibit honesty and integrity in their actions with internal and external 
persons with whom they interact. 

• No employee should take any action on behalf of the ELCHC that they know, or 
reasonably should know, violates any applicable law or regulation. This obviously 
includes such activities as bribery, kickbacks, making false statements and 
misrepresentations. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 9 



Page 18 of 66

• The ELCHC prohibits all employees and their family members from accepting or giving 
gifts, gratuities, or entertainment from individuals and firms with whom the ELCHC 
does business. 

• Employees are expected to avoid any investment or ownership, directly or indirectly, 
of a substantial interest in a customer, subcontractor, supplier or other service firm that 
or might be doing business with or in competition with the ELCHC, or with a present 
or prospective ELCHC client or vendor. A "substantial interest" is one that will or might 
be significant or of relevance to any ELCHC transaction or its results or can at any 
time be so perceived. Whether an ownership is "substantial" depends upon all 
circumstances and will most likely be determined retrospectively. Therefore, full 
disclosure and advance request for interpretation as provided under the 
"implementation" provisions of this policy is strongly encouraged in all cases. Such 
disclosure will, in most cases, eliminate any actual or potential conflict of interest or 
policy deviation. 

• Serving as an officer, director, employee, committee member, agent or representative 
to or consultant of any company, firm or business other than the ELCHC must never 
be undertaken when such service confl icts with the ELCHC's interests or detracts from 
or infringes in a significant way on the employee's time or responsibilities with the 
ELCHC or is with an organization that is a vendor to or provider with the ELCHC. 

• Equipment, material, and supplies purchased are for ELCHC business purposes only. 
Using or diverting the ELCHC's know-how, internal information, equipment, materials, 
supplies or the time and services of its personnel for any purpose other than in the 
performance of the employees' responsibilities for the ELCHC is prohibited. 

• Any employee who has a relative with a financial interest in an entity that does 
business with the ELCHC, or is an officer, director, employee, committee member, 
agent or representative of such entity may be a conflict of interest. For the purpose of 
this section, an "employee's relative" means father; mother; son; daughter; brother; 
sister; uncle; aunt; first cousin; nephew; niece; spouse; grandfather; grandmother; 
great uncle; great aunt; father-in-law; mother-in-law; son in- law; daughter-in-law; 
brother-in-law; sister-in-law; stepfather; stepmother; stepson; stepdaughter; 
stepbrother; stepsister; half-brother; or half-sister. Employees should avoid such 
confl icts of interest. If such a relationship exists, or if at any time it is discovered that 
such a relationship exists, immediately complete the "Conflict of Interest Information 
Form," so it can be forwarded to both the CEO/OHO and Board Chair. A fa ilure to 
submit this form can result in disciplinary action, up to and including term ination. 

Conflicts of interest may arise in situations where personal relationships between employees 
may create an appearance of favoritism or lack of objectivity. Where two employees are 
related or become involved in a relationship that may trigger these concerns, the ELCHC may 
take steps to eliminate the conflict. Any relationship that may raise these concerns should be 
reported to the CEO/OHO and/or Human Resources. Such steps may involve transfer or 
reassignment so that the employees involved are not in the same department and/or do not 
share any type of reporting relationship or chain of command, or in some circumstances, 
termination. 

Political Activities 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 10 



Page 19 of 66

Employees of the ELCHC are subject to all Florida statutes applicable to political activity by 
government- funded employees. Knowledge of, and compliance with, applicable statutes is 
the responsibility of the individual employee. Employees should be as of theaware 
importance of the appearance of objectivity, neutrality and non-partisanship as its substance 
in the exercise of their legal and political rights. Employees shall advise the CEO/OHO of their 
intention to declare candidacy for a political office or assume a leadership role in any political 
campaign. The employee shall also indicate the steps that he/she/they will take to assure that 
this activity does not conflict with assigned job responsibilities at the ELCHC. 

Employee Hotline 
There are no easy answers to many ethical issues we face in our daily business activities. In some 
cases, the right thing to do will be obvious, but in other more complex situations, it may be difficult 
for an employee to decide what to do. When an employee is faced with a tough ethical decision or has 
have any doubts as to the right thing to do, the employee should talk to Human Resources. 

If you have any questions or concerns about policies, practices or procedures which you believe are 
illegal or unethical, or about any misconduct by an employee, please contact Human Resources. An 
employee can also report such concerns anonymously, by calling the Employee Hotline at (813) 280-
0799 ext. 422. The hotline is monitored by the Manager, Fraud and Compliance, who will follow up on 
each situation as appropriate. 

The ELCHC will not permit any form of retaliation against any person, who, in good faith, reports 
violations or suspected violations of company policy or the law. 

Whistle Blower: Reporting Violations of Law 
Employees of the ELCHC, who report certain violations of law or gross mismanagement by public 
agencies or employees are protected from retaliation by the Florida Public Whistle-Blower's Act, 
sections 112.3187-112.3188, Florida Statues. 

The ELCHC will not take retaliatory action against an employee who reports to an appropriate agency 
having the authority to investigate and remedy the complaint: 

a) a violation or suspected violation of any federal, state or local law, rule or 
regulation, committed by an employee or agent of the ELCHC. which creates and 
present a substantial and specific danger to the public's health, safety or welfare; or 

b) any act or suspected act of gross mismanagement, malfeasance, misfeasance, 
gross waste of public funds, suspected or actual Medicaid fraud or abuse, or gross 
neglect of duty on the part of an employee or agent of the ELCHC. 

Disclosures concerning the ELCHC must be in a written and signed complaint submitted to the CEO. 
The CEO will then conduct or arrange for a prompt investigation. Employees who know of actual, 
potential or suspected instances of fraud, program mismanagement, employee misconduct or 
management abuse by the ELCHC or its agents, may also notify the state Office of the Inspector 
General, 850-717-8605: whistlebtower@oetmyflorida.com, or other appropriate agency. 

Employees and Persons Protected 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 11 

mailto:whistlebtower@oetmyflorida.com


Page 20 of 66

- -------

This policy protects employees and persons who disclose information on their own initiative in 
a written and signed complaint; who are requested to participate in an investigation, hearing, 
or other inquiry conducted by any agency or federal government entity; who refuse to 
participate in any adverse personnel action prohibited Fla. Stat. § 112.3187; or who file their 
written and signed complaint with the CEO. 

Retaliation will not be tolerated, and any employee who believes he or she is being retaliated 
against for engaging in such conduct must report it to Human Resources and/or the CEO/OHD. 

No remedy or other protection under this policy applies to any person who has committed or 
intentionally participated in committing the violation or suspected violation for which 
protection under this policy is being sought. 

The provisions of this policy shall not be applicable when an employee discloses information 
known by the employee to be false. 

Social Media Policy 
At the ELCHC, we understand that social media can be a fun and rewarding way to share ideas, gather 
information and learn from the work of others. However, use of social media also presents certain 
risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To assist you in making responsible decisions about 
your use of social media, we have established these guidelines for appropriate use of social media. 

In the rapidly expanding world of electronic communication, social media can mean many things. 
Social media includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of any sort on 
the Internet. including to your own or someone else's web log or blog, journal or diary, personal web 
site, social networking or affinity web site, web bulletin board or a chat room, whether or not 
associated or affiliated with ELCHC, as well as any other form of electronic communication. The same 
principles and guidelines found in ELCHC policies apply to your activities online. Ultimately, you are 
solely responsible for what you post on line. Before creating on line content, consider some of the risks 
and rewards that are involved. Keep in mind that any of your conduct that adversely affects your job 
performance, the performance of fellow employees or otherwise adversely affects its partners, 
providers, funders, the families we serve, others who work on behalf of ELCHC, or our legitimate 
business interests may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Carefully read these guidelines, the ELCHC's Conflict of Interest and Ethical Standards Policy, the 
ELCHC Non- Discrimination & Harassment-Free Workplace Policy, and ensure your postings are 
consistent with these policies. Inappropriate postings that may include discriminatory remarks, 
harassment. and threats of violence or similar inappropriate or unlawful conduct will not be tolerated 
and may subject you to disciplinary action up to and including termination. The guidelines are as 
follows: 

• Always be fair and courteous to fellow employees, vendors, funders, the families we 
serve and others who work in our field. Also, keep in mind that you are more likely to 
resolve work related complaints by speaking directly with your co-workers or utilizing 
our Conflict Resolution Policy than by posting complaints to a social media outlet. 
Nevertheless, if you decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, 
photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 12 



Page 21 of 66

threatening or intimidating, that disparage families we serve, employees, vendors or 
suppliers, or that might constitute harassment or bullying. Examples of such conduct 
might include offensive posts meant to intentionally harm someone's reputation or 
posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment based on race, sex, 
disability, religion or any other status protected by law or company policy. 

• Never post any information or rumors that you know to be false about ELCHC, its 
employees, partners, providers, funders, the families we serve, or others who work 
with or on behalf of the ELCHC. Post only appropriate and respectful content. 

• Maintain the confidentiality of ELCHC trade secrets and private or confidential 
business information. Trades secrets may include information regarding the 
development of systems, processes, products, know-how, technology, programs and 
other information not lawfully available from public sources. Do not disclose the 
identity or information about ELCHC partners, providers or those we serve without 
permission from Human Resources. Do not disclose new ideas relating to work or the 
ELCHC's business without permission from Human Resources; those ideas belong to 
the ELCHC. When in doubt about the confidentiality or trade secret status of 
information, ask Human Resources before publishing. 

• Do not disclose personal information (such as social security numbers, medical 
information, and account information) about the ELCHC, its employees, partners, 
providers, funders, the families we serve, or third parties, that you create, receive or 
of which you become aware during your employment. 

• Comply with all laws governing copyright, fair use of copyrighted material, trademark 
and other intellectual property. 

• Refrain from posting subject matter that conflicts with ELCHC values. Remember that 
even if a message is posted anonymously, it may be possible to trace it back to the 
sender. 

• Employees are encouraged to like the ELCHC's Facebook and Linkedln posts. 
Employees should use appropriate professional judgment and discretion in linking 
from any social media website to the ELCH C's website, taking into account our mission, 
our funders and the families we serve. Employees wishing to do so should contact the 
Web design group to obtain the graphic for links to the ELCHC's site and to register the 
site with the ELCHC. If you create a link from your blog, website or other social 
networking site to a ELCHC website you must identify yourself as a ELCHC employee. 

• Express only your personal opinions. Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for 
ELCHC. If ELCHC is a subject of the content you are creating, be clear and open about 
the fact that you are an employee and make it clear that your views do not represent 
those of ELCHC, fellow employees, its partners, Employer, its employees, partners, 
providers, funders, the families we serve, or others who work on behalf of the ELCHC. 
If you do publish a blog or post online related to the work you do or subjects 
associated with ELCHC, make it clear that you are not speaking on behalf of ELCHC. It 
is required to include a disclaimer such as "The postings on this site are my own and 
do not necessarily reflect the views of ELCHC." 

• Refrain from using social media while on working time or on equipment we provide, 
unless it is work-related as authorized by your manager or consistent with the ELCHC 
Equipment Policy. Do not use ELCHC email addresses to register on social networks, 
biogs or other on line tools utilized for personal use. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 13 



Page 22 of 66

ELCHC prohibits retaliation against any employee for reporting a possible violation of this policy or for 
cooperating in an investigation. Any employee who retaliates against another employee for reporting 

a possible violation of this policy or for cooperating in an investigation will be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination. 

If you have questions or need further guidance, please contact Human Resources. 

Communication System and Use 
For the purposes of this Policy, the term Communication System is defined as including tools provided 
in the office setting such as business phones, computers/laptops and faxes and as well as any 
personal or business handheld electronic device with the ability to receive and/or transmit voice, text, 
of data messages without a cable connection (including, but not limited to I-pads, tablets, cell phones, 
digital wireless phones, radio phones/walkie-talkies, telephone pagers), personal digital assistants 
with wireless connection capabilities (PDAs), or other wireless devices. The ELCHC reserves the right 
to modify or update this policy at any time. 

Use of Communication System/Device for Personal Use at Work. While at work, 
employees are expected to exercise discretion in using both business and personal devices for 
personal use. Excessive personal calls or other types of communication during the workday, 
regardless of the system/device used, can interfere with the employee's productivity and be 
distracting to other employees. Employees should restrict their personal calls or other 
communication needs during work time and should use personal cell phones and devices (for 
any reason including direct call, text, social media, or other use) during scheduled break or 
lunch periods in non-work areas. Other personal calls or communication should be made 
during non-working time whenever possible and employees should ensure that their family 
members and friends are instructed of this policy. The ELCHC is not liable for the loss or 
damage to and/or loss of cell phones or other personal devices brought to the workplace. 

To ensure the effectiveness of meetings, employees are asked to silence all personal cell phones 
or other communication devices or, if possible, leave them at their desk. If the need arises to 
accept a call during a meeting, please exit the meeting space to answer the cal l to minimize 
disrupting the meeting. 

Guidelines for Compliance 
• Employees should limit personal communication (regardless of the system/device) to 

approved break or lunch times to the maximum extent possible. 
• Frequent or lengthy personal phone or device use is not acceptable as it may adversely 

affect the employee's productivity and disturb others. 
• Employees are encouraged to use common sense when making or receiving personal 

phone calls at work. For example, employees should speak quietly, keep calls very short 
and reserve personal or intimate details for non-work hours. 

• Business phone use and personal cell phone use, even when permitted, must never 
include language that is obscene, discriminatory, offensive, prejudicial or defamatory 
in any way (such as jokes, slurs and/or inappropriate remarks regarding a person's 
race, ethnicity, sex, sexual orientation, religion, color, age or disability). Business 
phone use must always follow good customer service guidelines. 

• Personal cell phones generally should not be used for business-related purposes. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 14 



Page 23 of 66

• Employees should turn off personal cell phone ringers or change ringers to "mute" or 
"vibrate" during work hours. 

• The ELCHC recognizes that cell phones have become an integral part of everyone's lives 
and do permit employees to bring their cell phones to work. All employees are 
expected to exercise good judgement when using personal cell phones. 

Disciplinary Consequences 
The ELCHC retains the right to monitor employees for excessive or inappropriate use of 
communication systems. If it is discovered that an employee's communication system/device 
usage causes a decline in productivity, disrupts the work environment or interferes with 
others, the employee may face disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Computer Software Licensing 
The ELCHC purchases or licenses the use of various computer software programs. Neither the 
ELCHC nor any of the ELCHC's employees have the right to duplicate computer software or its 
related documentation. Unauthorized duplication of computer software is a federal offense, 
punishable by up to a $250,000 fine and up to 5 years in prison. The ELCHC does not condone 
the illegal duplication of software. Employees must use the software in accordance with the 
license agreement. This policy applies not only to individual desktop computers and laptops 
but to local area networks as well. Employees learning of any misuse of software or related 
documentation within the ELCHC must notify Human Resources. Employees who reproduce, 
acquire or use unauthorized copies of computer software will be subject to discipline, up to 
and including termination. Even if legally obtained andfully licensed, no software or program may 
be installed on ELCHC computers without the express consent of the ELCHC network administrator. 

Ownership of Work Product/ Protection of Third-Party Information 
All work created, received or stored on ELCHC computers or computer systems or relating to 
the ELCHC, including documents, images, databases, materials, logs, studies or information in other 
formats, is 'Work Product" and is the property of the ELCHC. Employees may participate in creating 
or improving such Work Product, but all such Work Product belongs to the ELCHC. including any 
copyrights, patents, or other intellectual property rights pertaining thereto. Employees do not have 
the right to use, disclose or share any Work Product with any person or entity except in accordance 
with the performance of their job duties for the ELCHC. No employee may delete, transmit, store 
or share any Work Product without permission from the CEO/OHD. To the extent the ELCHC 
receives information generated by funding sources or other third parties, employees also 
must protect the confidentiality of that information, and must not use, disclose or share such 
information with any person or entity not authorized to receive it. 

Passwords 
All ELCHC user passwords (e-mail, voicemail, documents) must never be disclosed to anyone. 

Electronic Mall/Internet Monitoring 
All email communications are subject to Florida's Government in the Sunshine Laws and 
considered public records. The ELCHC recognizes the employees' need to be able to 
communicate efficiently with fellow employees. The e-mail system is for business use. 
Employees are prohibited from displaying or transmitting sexually explicit images, messages, 
ethnic slurs, racial epithets or anything that could be construed as harassment or disparaging 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 15 



Page 24 of 66

of others. Any employee, supervisor or agent of the ELCHC who has been found to have 
violated this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. Employees should use good judgment in communications; often it may be more 
appropriate to discuss matters on a face-to-face basis with their co-workers and/or other 
stakeholders, rather than by email. 

Outlook Calendars 
All ELCHC employees are required to maintain their Outlook calendar. This serves a variety of 
purposes ranging from timesheet reporting and approval, PTO tracking, scheduling meeting 
times, time and travel reimbursement reviews. 

Internet Use 
Use of chat rooms, games, travel pages, shopping, stock trad ing, hate/discrimination sites, 
pornography sites, instant messaging, and viewing of all other non-work-related websites is 
an inappropriate activity during the workday or working time. Employees involved in these 
activities are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

• The ELCHC is committed to maintaining a work environment free of harassment. In 
keeping with this commitment, the ELCHC will not tolerate the inappropriate use or 
downloading of any materials that are discriminatory, defamatory, harassing, 
insulting, offensive, pornographic or obscene. 

• It is prohibited for anyone to copy or send to unauthorized persons any confidential 
or proprietary information, and/or to use or copy software protected by copyright and 
other laws protecting intellectual property. It is prohibited for any unauthorized staff 
member to gain access to any other staff member's electronic communications. 

• Employees should have no expectation of privacy or confidentiality in any message or 
content sent, received or stored using the ELCHC Communications System. 

• Employees shall not use unauthorized codes or passwords to gain access to others' 
files. The ELCHC reserves the right to review any files, messages or communications 
sent, received, or stored on the ELCHC's Communications System. 

• Employees violating this policy are subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. Employees using the ELCHC's Communications System 
for defamatory, illegal, or fraudulent purposes are also subject to civil liability and 
criminal prosecution. 

Volcemail Monitoring 
It is recognized that employees' need to be able to communicate efficiently with our partners, 
providers, vendors, those we serve, and fellow employees. Therefore, a voice mail system is 
available to facilitate the transmittal of business-related information. The voice mail system is 
for business use only. The use of the ELCHC's voice mail system for personal communications 
or for non-job-related solicitations including, but not limited to, religious or political causes, is 
strictly prohibited. Employees also are prohibited from transmitting sexually explicit 
messages, ethnic slurs, racial epithets or anything, that could be construed as harassment or 
disparaging of others. 

• All messages are ELCHC records. Employees should have no expectation of 
privacy in connection with voice mail messages. Management reserves the 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 16 



Page 25 of 66

right to enter, search and/or monitor the private ELCHC voice mail system and 
the voice mail of any employee without advance notice and consistent with 
applicable laws. 

• For effective customer service purposes, employees should utilize the "out-of
office assistant" or "call forwarding" features when absent from the office for 
1 or more days. The messages should include the name and phone number of 
a "back-up staff," designated by their supervisor, to be contacted for urgent 
matters. 

• Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. 

Child Abuse and Neglect 
• The ELCHC will abide by the Florida Department of Children and Families, or any 

successive authorities, guidelines as to reporting procedures of child abuse and 
neglect. The Child Abuse and Neglect Policy of the State of Florida is outlined in the 
state's published website, at http://www.myflfamilies.com/service- programs/abuse
hotline/frequently-asked-questions and is required reading for all staff members. 
Every employee of the ELCHC must strictly follow Florida Department of Children and 
Families guidelines for reporting abuse and neglect. No exceptions to this policy are 
permitted. 

• Chapter 39 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) mandates that any person who knows, or has 
reasonable cause to suspect, that a child is abused, neglected, or abandoned shall 
immediately report such knowledge or suspicion to the Florida Abuse Hotline of the 
DCF. All reports are considered confidential and access to reports is limited by specific 
Florida Statutes criteria. A list of occupations is specified in the Florida Law as 
mandatory reporters. A mandatory reporter's name is maintained on a confidential 
basis. Reporters are required to contact the Florida Abuse Hotline when there is 
reasonable suspicion. Telephone 1 (800) 962-2873 Fax 1 (800) 914-0004 TDD 1 (800) 
453-5145 

• Florida state laws are specific regarding child and vulnerable adult abuse and neglect. 
Every employee is responsible for having knowledge of and reading the following 
document located at http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/abuse/definitions.shtml. This 
document answers detailed questions regarding the State of Florida's legal criteria and 
reporting procedures. 

Confidentiality 
The ELCHC operates in accordance with the Government-in-the-Sunshine Law. However, records of a 
child enrolled in the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program or the School Readiness Program 
held by the ELCHC are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State 
Constitution. For purposes of this section, such records include assessment data, health data, records 
of teacher observations, and personal identifying information of an enrolled child and his or her 
parent. 

Employees must not disclose any confidential information, purposefully or inadvertently through 
casual conversation, to any unauthorized person inside or outside the ELCHC. Employees unsure 
about the confidential nature of specific information must ask their supervisor for clarification. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 17 

http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/abuse/definitions.shtml
http://www.myflfamilies.com/service-programs/abuse


Page 26 of 66

Employees will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, for 
knowingly or unknowingly revealing information of a confidential nature. 

Media Interaction 
The ELCHC seeks a strong relationship with the media. Effective communications with the media are 
crit ical to the ELCHC's ability to carry out its mission and promote continued support. To maintain this 
relationship and to ensure productive interactions, all media inquiries should be forwarded to the 
Chief Development Officer or the Manager, Marketing and Resource Development. If those individuals 
are not unavailable, media calls should be directed to the CEO/OHO. No other employees are 
authorized to speak on behalf of the ELCHC. 

Personal Property 
The ELCHC is not responsible for loss or damage to personal property. Valuable personal items, such 
as purses and all other valuables, shou ld not be left in areas where theft might occur. 

Parking 
The ELCHC is not responsible for loss, damage or theft of employees' vehicle or its contents. Lock 
vehicle doors when parking and do not leave valuables in a vehicle. 

Care of Equipment, Supplies and Materials 
Employees are expected to demonstrate proper care when using the ELCHC's property and 
equipment. No property may be removed from the premises without the proper authorization of 
management. If an employee loses, breaks or damages any property, it should be reported it to their 
supervisor, at once. Waste and misuse, even in small ways, can be costly when many people are 
involved. All employees should be as conservative and resourceful with ELCHC supplies and materials. 

Job Posting 
The ELCHC is committed to employing the best candidates for approved positions and engaging in 
effective recruitment and selection practices in compliance with all appl icable employment laws. The 
ELCHC believes in promoting from within when there are qualified and competitive internal 
cand idates. 

Where the ELCHC posts a position externally, it also will post it internally. Employees wishing to apply 
for a different position must notify their supervisor prior to doing so. To be considered for an open 
position, an employee must have successfully completed the 90-Day Introductory Period and not have 
had a Corrective Action in the prior six months. Human Resources will notify applicants as to whether 
and when they will be interviewed for the position. If hired for the new position, the current and the 
new supervisor will work together to determine an appropriate transfer date. 

If an employee has accepted one position and then wishes to apply for another position, the employee 
must wa it to apply for the new position until they have successfully completed the 90 Day Introductory 
Period. 

Dress Code 
The ELCHC strives to maintain a professional workplace environment. All ELCHC employees are 
expected to present a polished, business-like image to partners, providers, vendors, those we serve 
and the public. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 18 



Page 27 of 66

Although it is impossible to establish an absolute dress code, the ELCHC will apply a reasonable and 
professional workplace standard to individuals on a case-by-case basis. The ELCHC may make 
exceptions for special occasions or in the case of inclement weather, at which time employees will be 
notified in advance. An employee unsure of what is appropriate should check with his/her manager 
or supervisor. 

Any employee who is not dressed in proper professional attire consistent with this policy will be 
considered unsuitable to work and may be asked to go home and return to work appropriately 
dressed. Non-exempt employees will not be compensated for any work time missed because of failure 
to comply with appropriate workplace attire and grooming standards unless they apply accrued PTO. 

Business Dress Code Standards 

An employee's clothing should always be in keeping with customary acceptable attire for the 
workplace, office and meeting with partners, providers, vendors, those we serve, and the 
public. Clothing that is not allowed while working includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

• Shirts with language or graphics (other than with the ELCHC logo) 
• Attire that is revealing or provocative 
• Clothing that allows bare midriffs 
• Sweatpants, shorts or jeans 
• Leggings unless paired with a tunic style top 
• See-through blouses or shirts 
• Sports bras, halter tops, tank tops or tops with spaghetti straps 
• Flip-flops, sneakers 

Casual Dress Code Standards 

Casual dress is permitted on Fridays. When meeting clients, business dress guidelines must 
be observed, unless the client has specifically requested otherwise. 

Casual dress for Fridays is defined as follows: 

1. Shirts: All shirts with collars, business casual crewneck or V-neck shirts, blouses, golf, 
polo and T-shirts. Examples of inappropriate shirts include those with inappropriate 
slogans, tank tops, muscle shirts, camouflage and crop tops. 

2. Pants: Casual slacks and trousers and jeans without holes, frays, etc. Examples of 
inappropriate pants include shorts, camouflage and pants worn below the waist or 
hip line. 

3. Footwear: Casual slip-on or tie shoes, sandals, and athletic shoes. Examples of 
inappropriate footwear include construction and hunting boots. 

Employment of Family Members 
Family members of current employees generally may be considered for employment based on their 
qualifications. A family member is defined as spouse, parent, stepparent, child, stepchild, daughter
in-law, son-in-law, foster child, brother, stepbrother, sister, stepsister, grandparent or grandchild of 
either the employee or his/her spouse or any person regularly residing in the employee's household. 
However, where the hiring or employment of an employee's relative would result in the types of 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 19 



Page 28 of 66

prohibited employment relationships identified below, the ELCHC will not accept or consider such 
applications for employment. 

Prohibited Employment Relationships: The hiring of a family member is prohibited if 
employment of such an individual would result in the creation of: 

a. A supervisory/subordinate relationship between a family member and an employee: 
b. If a direct supervisory or managerial relationship would be established, family 

members of a current employee cannot be considered as applicants for an open 
position. 

c. An actual conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest. Generally, 
this bars the hiring or employment of an employee's family member in any position 
that has auditing or control relationship to the employee's job. 

Marriages or Relationships between Employees: Employees who marry or establish a close 
personal relationship may continue in their current positions so long as it does not adversely 
affect the work environment or create an adverse impact on work performance. If issues arise 
from such personal relationship, one of the employees may be required to resign. 

Enforcement of Policy: All questions and issues relating to an employment of family member 
situation or concern should be addressed to the CEO/OHD. Employees who become subject 
to this policy's provisions, due to marriage or commencement of a close personal relationship, 
must inform their supervisor and/or the CEO/OHO as soon as practica l. All decisions and 
personnel actions taken because of this policy must be reviewed and approved by the 
CEO/OHD. This policy shall apply without regard to sex and without regard to the sexual 
orientation or gender identity of the participants in a relationship of the kind described. 

Worksite Breastfeeding 
Because breastfeeding has been shown to be the superior form of infant nutrition, providing a 
multi tude of health benefits to both infants and mother, and because breastfeeding employees need 
ongoing support in the worksite to be able to provide their milk for their babies, the ELCHC subscribes 
to the following procedures: 

• Employees shall be provided a place to breastfeed or express their milk. An employee 
lactation room is provided as a private and sanitary place for breastfeeding employees 
to express their milk during work hours. This room provides an electrical outlet, 
comfortable chair, and nearby access to running water. Employees may, of course, use 
their private office area for milk expression if they prefer. 

• A refrigerator is available for safe storage of expressed breast milk. 
• Employees shall be provided some flexibility with respect to breaks to accommodate 

breastfeeding. All employees are entitled to two 15-minute breaks a day, in addition 
to a 30-minute lunch break. Non-exempt employees who need longer or different 
breaks to accommodate breastfeeding should speak to their supervisors or Human 
Resources to make arrangements. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 20 



Page 29 of 66

COMMITMENT TO SAFETY 

General Safety Rules 
Protecting the safety of our employees and visitors is the most important aspect of running our 
business. 

It is the responsibility of every employee to work safely; follow all safety and health procedures 
applicable to their jobs; report potential safety and health hazards in the workplace; and report any 
work-related accidents, injuries, and illnesses as soon as reasonably possible. 

ELCHC employees perform a wide range of functions in various locations. Although some safety rules 
apply only to specific positions, all employees are expected to comply with the rules in this procedure, 
including approved work from home: 

• Use common sense in performing duties. 
• Report any work injury or illness to your supervisor. 
• Report unsafe conditions to your supervisor. 
• Do not use any equipment, vehicles or materials when overly tired, nauseated, 

feverish or under the influence of any substance that may affect your judgment. 
• Keep the work area neat and tidy. 
• Use mechanical devices or request assistance in lifting heavy loads. 
• Wear seat belts when operating any ELCHC or rented vehicle or driving a personal 

vehicle while on company business. 
• Do not use tops of cabinets or bookcases for extra storage or displays. 
• Be sure that aisles or exits are kept clear; do not let cords interfere with walkways. 
• Keep paper clips. tacks, pins, staples, and other objects off the floors. 
• Properly store all sharp objects when not in use. 
• Open and close doors cautiously and use extra caution at blind hallway intersections. 
• Open only one file cabinet drawer at a time to avoid tipping over the cabinet. Cabinets 

should also be loaded from bottom to top and emptied in the reverse order. 
• Report or clean up all spills immediately. 
• Use stepstools or ladders for climbing; never use chairs. 

Workers' Compensation 
Workers' compensation provides compensation for medical expenses and wage losses to employees 
due to an employment related injury or illness. The ELCHC pays the entire cost of workers' 
compensation insurance. The insurance provides coverage for related medical and rehabilitation 
expenses and a portion of lost wages to employees who sustain an injury on the job. The ELCHC abides 
by all applicable state workers' compensation laws and regulations. 

If an employee sustains a job-related injury or illness, it is important to notify the supervisor and 
Human Resources immediately. The supervisor will complete an injury report with input from the 
employee and return the form to the Human Resources department. Human Resources will file the 
claim with the insurance company. 

In cases of true medical emergencies, report to the nearest emergency room. The injured employee 
will be required to undergo a drug and/or alcohol test if it is a work-related injury. If an employee 
refuses to be drug-tested after a workplace injury or accident, he/she/they may be subject to 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 21 



Page 30 of 66

disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment and your claim may be 
denied. Failure to report an accident may resu lt in a delay or denial of a claim and may result in 
disciplinary action. 

If medical care is required, you must be treated at a facility specified by the ELCHC. Ask your supervisor 
where to go for care. You must continue treatment until the situation is resolved and all work 
restrictions have been lifted. You must provide medical documentation to substantiate the need for 
time off from your job. If you must be off work for a month or more, you must provide medical 
documentation at least monthly and/or prior to the expiration of your last excuse. 

The ELCHC will not retaliate against any employee who makes a report of any safety hazard or injury 
suffered at work. Retaliation will not be tolerated and must be reported to Human Resources and/or 
the CEO/OHO. 

Workers' compensation benefits (paid or unpaid) will run concurrently with FMLA leave, if applicable, 
where permitted by state and federal law. 

Workplace Violence 
The ELCHC is committed to providing a safe, violence-free workplace for our employees. 

All employees, volunteers, interns, contracted staff, clients, and visitors should be always treated with 
courtesy and respect. Threats, threatening language, or any other acts of aggression or violence made 
toward or by any employee will not be tolerated. A threat may include any verbal or physical 
harassment or abuse, attempts to intimidate others, menacing gestures, stalking, or any other hostile, 
aggressive, and/or destructive actions taken for the purpose of or with the effect of intimidation or 
coercion, whether in the workplace or at ELCHC-sponsored functions. 

Any employee who threatens or attempts to harm another employee, client, or visitor will be 
terminated. Any client who threatens or attempts to harm another client, employee, or visitor may be 
terminated from ELCHC. Any other individual, not an employee or client, who threatens or attempts 
to harm an employee, client, or visitor, will be asked to leave the premises. If the individual refuses to 
leave, the police will be called to remedy the situation. (If the police do come on the property, please 
remember to obtain identification cards and a case number for follow-up and documentation.) 

All ELCHC employees bear the responsibi lity of keeping our work environment free from violence or 
potential vio lence. We discourage employees from engaging in any physical confrontation with a 
vio lent or potentially violent individual or from behaving in a threatening or violent manner. All 
th reats should be taken seriously. If an employee witnesses or experiences any threatening or violent 
behavior and feels there is imminent danger, the employee should call 911 and thereafter inform their 
supervisor and Human Resources. If the employee does not feel there is a threat of imminent danger, 
the employee should inform their supervisor and Human Resources. Thereafter the employee should 
provide written documentation of the incident to Human Resources. 

All threats w ill be promptly investigated and appropriate action will be taken, up to and including 
termination. No employee will be subject to retaliation, intimidation, or discipline because of reporting 
a threat in good faith under this guideline. In addition, any individual engaging in violence or 
threatened violence against the ELCHC, its employees, or its property will be prosecuted to the full 
extent of the law 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 22 



Page 31 of 66

Any employee who has a court order prohibiting another person from contacting the employee either 
at their residence or place of work, should notify Human Resources. This is for the employee's 
protection, as well as the protection of coworkers. 

Active Shooter 
Quickly determine the most reasonable way to protect your own life. During an incident of an active 
shooter, employees are encouraged to respond in the following manner: RUN/HIDE/FIGHT 

• RUN: 
• Have an escape route and plan in mind/Leave your belongings behind/Keep your 

hands visible 
• HIDE 
• Hide in an area out of the active shooter's view/Block entry to your hiding place and 

secure the doors 
• FIGHT 
• As a last resort and only when your life is in imminent danger/Attempt to incapacitate 

the active shooter/Act with physical aggression and throw items at the active shooter 

Call 911 when it is safe to do so. 

How to Respond when Law Enforcement Arrives on the Scene: 

• Remain calm and follow officer's instructions 
• Immediately raise hands and spread fingers 
• Always keep hands visible 
• Avoid making quick movements toward officers such as attempting to hold on to them 

for safety 
• Avoid pointing, screaming and/or yelling 
• Do not stop officers for help or direction when evacuating, just proceed in the direction 

from which officers are entering the premises 

Information you should provide to Law Enforcement or 911 Operator: 

• Location of the victims and the active shooter 
• Number of shooters, if more than one 
• Physical description of shooters 
• Number and type of weapons held by the shooters 
• Number of potential victims at the location 

Drug-Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace 
It is the policy of the ELCHC to maintain a drug and alcohol-free work environment that is safe and 
productive for employees and others having business with the ELCHC. The unlawful use, possession, 
purchase, sale, distribution, or being under the influence of any illegal drug and/or the misuse of legal 
drugs while on ELCHC or client premises or while performing services for the ELCHC is strictly 
prohibited. The legal use of prescribed drugs is permitted on the job only if it does not impair an 
employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the job effectively and in a safe manner that 
does not endanger other individuals in the workplace. The ELCHC also prohibits reporting to work or 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 23 



Page 32 of 66

performing services while impaired using alcohol or consuming alcohol while on duty or during work 
hours. 

The ELCHC reserves the right to conduct random drug-testing and to conduct "Reasonable-suspicion 
drug testing". "Reasonable suspicion drug testing" means drug testing based on a belief that an 
employee is using or has used drugs in violation of our policy based on specific objective facts and 
reasonable inferences. Among other things, such facts and inferences may be based upon: 

1. Observable phenomena while at work, such as direct observation of drug use or of 
the physical symptoms or manifestations of being under the influence of a drug. 

2. Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work or a significant deterioration in 
work performance. 

3. A report of drug use provided by a reliable and credible source. 
4. Evidence that an individual has tampered with a drug test during his or her 

employment with the current employer. 
5. Information that an employee has caused, contributed to, or been involved in an 

accident while at work. 
6. Evidence that an employee has used, possessed, sold, solicited, or transferred drugs 

while working or while on the employer's premises or while operating the employer's 
vehicle, machinery, or equipment. 

Any employee who has had a workplace injury must undergo a test for drugs and alcohol. If an injured 
worker refuses to submit to a test for drugs or alcohol, the employee may forfeit eligibility for medical 
and indemnity benefits. Compliance with th is policy is a condition of employment. Employees who 
test positive or who refuse to submit to a drug test will be subject to termination. Notwithstanding 
any provision herein, th is policy will always be enforced in accordance with applicable state and local 
law. 

The ELCHC will not retaliate against any employee by reason of the employee's valid claim 
for compensation or valid attempt to claim compensation under the Florida Workers' Compensation 
Statute. Any employee who believes he or she is being retal iated against for engaging in such conduct 
must report it to Human Resources and/or a member of management. 

An employee must provide written notification to Human Resources of any crim inal drug statute 
conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such convict ion. The 
ELCHC will take appropriate personnel action up to and including termination, consistent with the law. 

Smoke-Free Workplace 
Smoking is not allowed in ELCHC bui ldings or work areas at any time. Smoking, as used in this policy, 
includes the use of any tobacco products, electronic smoking devices, e-cigarettes containing nicotine 
cartridges or vaping. Smoking is only permitted during break times in designated outdoor areas. 
Employees using these areas are expected to dispose of any smoking debris safely and properly. 

Vehicle Safety 
Employees who drive a vehicle on ELCHC business must exercise due diligence to drive safely and to 
maintain the security of the vehicle and its contents. Use of handheld cell phones (including text ing) 
while behind the wheel of a moving vehicle being used on ELCHC business is strictly prohibited. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 24 



Page 33 of 66

Employees are responsible for any driving infractions or fines they incur driving. Nonemployees and 
nonbusiness passengers (i.e., family and friends) are prohibited from accompanying employees in 
vehicles on business-related travel. Employees who operate personal vehicles while on company 
business must obtain auto liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage with a special 
endorsement for business use, when necessary as determined by their personal insurance agent. 

Employees are not permitted, under any circumstances, to operate a personal vehicle for ELCHC 
business when any physical or mental impairment causes the employee to be unable to drive safely. 
Additionally, employees shall not operate any personal vehicle while on ELCHC business while using 
or consuming alcohol, illegal drugs or prescription medications that may affect their ability to drive. 
These prohibitions include circumstances in which the employee is temporarily unable to operate a 
vehicle safely or legally because of impairment. illness, medication or intoxication. 

Each employee is solely responsible for operating and maintaining their personal vehicles in a safe 
manner and is accountable in complying with all state and local driving rules and ELCHC regulations 
when operating a motor vehicle in the conduct of ELCHC business. All employees will follow the safe 
driving rules (i.e., obeying speed limits, no cell phone use or texting) and laws of the State of Florida 
when operating a motor vehicle in the conduct of ELCHC business. Should employees become involved 
in an accident while driving on ELCHC business, notify the proper authorities and ensure that an 
accident report is completed before the Close of Business (COB) on the day of the accident. Employees 
must report to Human Resources if they are in a motor vehicle accident while on ELCHC business. 

Each employee responsible for driving on business related travel will be asked to provide proof of a 
valid driver's license. All employees who drive on ELCHC business must notify their supervisor and 
Human Resources immediately if their driver's license is suspended or revoked. 

Weapons 
The ELCHC always prohibits the possession of weapons on its property, including ELCHC vehicles. 
Additionally, while on duty, employees may not carry a weapon of any type. Weapons include, but are 
not limited to, handguns, rifles, automatic weapons, and knives that can be used as weapons 
(excluding pocketknives, utility knives, and other instruments that are used to open packages, cut 
string, and for other miscellaneous tasks), martial arts paraphernalia, stun guns, and tear gas. To the 
extent required by Florida law, employees are not prohibited from possessing legally owned firearms 
within their private vehicles in the parking lot, if those firearms remain locked in their private vehicles. 
However, under no circumstances shall such firearms be brought into the ELCHC or surrounding areas 
or otherwise brandished or carried on ELCHC property, except solely for lawful defensive purposes. Any 
employee violating this policy is subject to discipline up to and including termination. 

The ELCHC reserves the right to inspect all belongings of employees on its premises, including 
briefcases, purses and handbags, gym bags, and personal vehicles on ELCHC property. 

Visitors at Work 
No visitors shall be allowed in areas other than the lobby, unless accompanied by a staff member, 
and are never allowed in any part of the office after hours. 

We are a family-friendly workplace and understand the presence of children in the workplace with the 
employee parent during the employee's workday may occasionally occur in emergencies. If bringing 
a child to work with the employee is necessary, the employee must contact his/her supervisor as soon 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 25 



as possible to discuss the situation and obtain permission to have the child accompany the employee 
while working. Factors the supervisors will consider are the age of the child, how long the child needs 
to be present, the work environment in the employee's area, and any possible disruption to the 
employee's and co-workers' work. Under no circumstances will an employee be permitted to 
bring a sick child to work. A child brought to the workplace will be the responsibi lity of the employee 
and must be always accompanied and be under the direct supervision of the employee 
parent/guardian. 

Page 34 of 66

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 26 



Page 35 of 66

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

Employee Classifications 

Full-Time Employees: Full-Time Employees are those who are regularly scheduled to work 40 
hours per week. Full-Time Employees are eligible for employee benefits established by the 
ELCHC 

Part-Time Employees: Part-Time Employees are those who are regularly scheduled to work 
29 or fewer hours per week. Applicable federal, state and local statutes and regulations cover 
part-time employees, but they are not eligible for employee benefits established by the 
ELCHC. 

Seasonal Employees: Seasonal employees are those who are hired into a position for which 
the customary annual employment is six (6) months or less. Applicable federal, state and local 
statutes and regulations cover seasonal employees. However, they are not eligible for other 
employee benefits established by the ELCHC. 

Non-Exempt Employees: Those employees who do not fall within one of the recognized 
exemptions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Exempt Employees: Those employees who are compensated on a salary basis and fall within 
one or more of the recognized exemptions under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Introductory Period 
All employees must complete a 90-day introductory period. At the conclusion of the 90-day 
introductory period employees will be evaluated and recommended for retention or termination. 

The purpose of the introductory period is to allow both the employee and the ELCHC to assess the 
compatibility of the employee's knowledge, skills, judgment, quantity and quality of work, work habits 
and personal relations skills with the ELCHC and its organizational mission. 

Employees accrue Paid Time Off during the introductory period but may not use it until they have 
successfully completed it. 

Successful completion of the introductory period does not guarantee employment for any period. All 
employees are employed atwill, meaning that either the ELCHC or the employee may terminate employment at any 
time with or without reason. 

Scheduled Work Week and Time-Keeping 
Our operating hours are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Full-time employees generally are expected to work 
their predetermined schedule totaling 40 hours per week, Monday through Friday, within those 
operating hours. Seasonal and Temporary employees are expected to work as scheduled by their 
supervisor. Any variations in work schedules must be approved in advance by the employee's 
supervisor. 

In addition to their 30-mlnute unpaid meal break each day, non-exempt employees are entitled to 
one paid 15-minute break in the morning and one paid 15-minute break in the afternoon. Employees 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 27 



Page 36 of 66

who take morning and afternoon breaks more than 15 minutes will be disciplined, up to and including 
termination. 

In general, non-exempt employees' regular work hours will not exceed 40 per workweek. However, 
an employee's work hours may vary from week to week depending on workload and scheduling 
needs. Hours worked by non-exempt employees more than 40 hours per week will be compensated 
at one and one-half times the employee's regular pay rate as overtime compensation. Paid Time Off 
and holiday time will not be counted as time worked for purposes of computing overtime pay. In no 
event is a Non-exempt employee to work overtime without prior authorization from his/her 
supervisor. 

Non-exempt employees must clock in and out, both at the start and end of their workdays, and at the 
beginning and end of their lunch breaks on the timekeeping system. Non-exempt employees are 
not permitted to begin work before their scheduled start times, to work through their lunch 
break, or to work past their regular hours without prior authorization from their supervisor. 

Non-exempt employees who work more than 40 hours in a workweek without prior written 
authorization are obligated to report the time worked and will be paid overtime for such time, but will 
be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of employment. All hours worked must be 
recorded. Employees are never permitted to work off-the-clock. Failing to record hours worked wi ll 
result in discipline, up to and including termination. 

Attendance and Punctuality 
Punctuality and attendance are essential to the proper operation of our business and are conditions 
of employment. Employees are requ ired to report to work at the beginning of the schedu led workday, 
ready to begin work. Unexcused absences and/or tardiness may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination. 

If an employee expects to arrive at work late or be absent from work, the employee must personally 
notify his/her supervisor in advance. If the employee cannot give advance notice, as in the case of 
sudden illness or accident, the employee is expected to call his/her supervisor at least th irty (30) 
minutes prior to the employee's scheduled starting time. Separate notice should be provided for each 
day, unless the leave has been approved in advance by the supervisor. Any employee who is absent 
from work for three or more consecutive days without notifying their supervisor will be deemed to 
have voluntarily resigned . 

An employee who expects to be absent for more than one day must inform his/her supervisor as soon 
as the employee learns of the expected absence, stating how long the employee expects to be absent. 
If an employee subsequently realizes the absence will be longer than originally expected, the 
employee must notify his/her supervisor again. 

Time Sheets. 
For reporting and allocation purposes, all employees must submit a timesheet. Recording time 
worked accurately is the responsibility of every employee. Non-exempt employees should accurately 
record the time they begin and end their work, as well as the beginning and ending time of each meal 
period. Non-exempt employees are not permitted to begin work before their scheduled start times, to 
work through their lunch break, or to work past their regular hours without prior authorization from 
their supervisor. Overtime work by non-exempt employees must always be approved by the 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 28 



Page 37 of 66

employees' supervisor before it is performed. Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records or 
recording time on another employee's time record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. It is the employee's responsibility to sign their timesheet to certify the accuracy of all time 
recorded. The supervisor will review and sign the timesheet before submitting for payroll processing. 

A reminder will be distributed, indicating the due date for submitting completed timesheet. From time 
to time the due date may change due to holidays. Employees are responsible for submitting a 
completed timesheet if on PTO. Failure to complete could result in a delayed paycheck. When 
reporting PTO time, employees must report in .25-hour increments. 

There may be an occasion where the CEO/OHO determines that the office will be closed due to an 
emergency, or other reason, for all or part of the day. Employees who were scheduled to work during 
that time may record their normal work hours as "Administrative Leave" on their timesheet. 
Employees who were already not scheduled to work (including those who were on PTO or leave) should not 
include those hours as Administrative Leave. 

Pay Periods. 
Employees are currently paid bi-weekly (every 2 weeks). Compensation decisions are generally made 
annually in connection with the budget approval process. Other adjustments may be made from time 
to time in the discretion of the CEO/CFO in accordance with the changes in employee roles or duties. 

Direct Deposits 
Employees pay will be deposited directly into their bank account through the ELCHC's direct-deposit 
program. Employees must complete and sign a direct deposit authorization form. 

Pay Deductions 
The ELCHC is required by law to make certain deductions from an employee's pay each pay period. 
Such deductions typically include federal income taxes, Social Security and Medicare. Once eligible, 
voluntary deductions for health care and the like can be made after an employee completes the 
necessary authorization forms. All deductions are listed on the paycheck stub. Employees will receive 
W-2 form (Wage and Tax Statement), totaling all their statutory deductions, according to IRS rules. 

Garnishment/Child Support 
When an employee's wages are garnished by a court order, the ELCHC is legally bound to withhold 
the amount indicated in the garnishment order from the employee's paycheck. The ELCHC will honor 
federal and state guidelines, protecting a certain amount of an employee's income from being subject 
to garnishment. Deductions for federal, state and city tax liens also can be made by the ELCHC without 
prior employee authorization. Employees will be notified when deductions are taken. 

Exempt Employees: Authorized Deductions 
Subject to the exceptions provided below, an exempt employee will receive the full salary for any week 
in which the employee performs any work without regard to the number of days or hours worked. 
Exempt employees need not be paid for any workweek in which they perform no work. 

Deductions from pay are allowed under the following exceptions: 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 29 



Page 38 of 66

• The ELCHC is not required to pay the full salary in the initial or last week of employment. 
The ELCHC will pay a proportionate part of an employee's full salary for the time 
worked in the first and last week of employment. 

• The ELCHC is not required to pay the full salary for weeks in which an exempt 
employee takes unpaid leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act. 

• Deductions from pay may be made for absences of one or more full days occasioned 
by sickness or disability (including work-related accidents) in accordance with our 
workers' compensation, leave of absence and/or other written policies or practices. 
The ELCHC is not required to pay any portion of an employee's salary for full day 
absences for which the employee receives compensation under disability, workers' 
compensation or other plans, policies or practices. Deductions for such full day 
absences also may be made before the employee has qual ified under the plan, policy 
or practice, and after the employee has exhausted the leave allowance thereunder. 

• The ELCHC will not make deductions from pay for absences of an exempt employee 
due to jury duty, attendance as a witness or temporary military leave. However, the 
ELCHC may offset any amounts received by an employee as jury fees, witness fees or 
military pay for a week against the salary due that week. 

• Deductions from pay ofexempt employees may be made for penalties imposed in good 
faith for infractions of safety rules of major significance, or for unpaid disciplinary 
suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for workplace conduct 
rule infractions set forth in a written policy that applies to all employees. 

• Deductions from pay may be made when an exempt employee is absent from work 
for one or more full days for personal reasons, other than sickness or disability. 

If an employee believes that an improper deduction was made from his/her salary, he/she 
should immediately notify Human Resources. The ELCHC will reimburse the employee for any 
improper deductions and will take steps to ensure that the improper deduction does not re
occur. 

Longevity Payments 
It is the policy of the ELCHC that tenure of a fulltime employee who continues to exemplify a solid 
performance should be recognized in one-time only monetary and non-monetary ways. The ELCHC 
may award longevity payments to eligible fulltime employees to recognize their contributions to the 
organization. Employees who have completed at least: 

• 10 years of employment shall be eligible for a longevity payment of $500.00 
• 15 years of employment shall be eligible for a longevity payment of$1,000.00 
• 20 years of employment shall be eligible for a longevity payment of$1,500.00 
• 25 years of employment shall be eligible for a longevity payment of$2,000.00 

Reimbursement of Work Expenses 
The ELCHC will reimburse employees for reasonable business travel expenses incurred while on 
assignments away from the normal work location. Management must approve all business travel in 
advance. Employees are expected to limit expenses to reasonable amounts. Employees will submit 
reimbursement requests, in accordance with the ELCHC procedures. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 30 

https://of$2,000.00
https://of$1,500.00
https://of$1,000.00


Page 39 of 66

Employees who use their personal veh icles for approved business purposes will receive a mileage 
allowance based on rates established in 112.061 Florida Statutes. This allowance is intended to 
compensate for all expenses associated with use of the vehicle, including the cost of gasoline, oil, 
depreciation, maintenance and insurance. 

Professional Development Activities 
The value of attendance at conferences, seminars, workshops and meetings, and/or enrollment in 
educational courses is recognized as a significant contributing factor to personal professional 
development and enrichment and expansion of the services provided by the ELCHC. The ELCHC aims 
to provide opportunities for such experiences for its employees consistent with the scope of ELCHC's 
mission, the employee's job assignment and available financial resources. With that in mind: 

• Conference attendance and staff development activities shall be regularly reviewed by 
the employee's immediate supervisor. 

• Annual budgets shall endeavor to account for beneficial conference and staff 
development activities. The CEO/OHO is responsible allocating these resources among 
employees consistent with the mission and needs of ELCHC. 

• Consistent with the mission and needs of the ELCHC as well as budgetary constraints, 
attendance at conferences, seminars, workshops, etc. that do not directly benefit ELCHC 
but may benefit staff for other purposes, may be considered on a limited basis at the 
discretion of ELCHC. The ELCHC support may take form of full orthe partial 
reimbursement and/or released time depending on the nature of the staff 
development activity. 

Professional development activities may be required of ELCHC personnel to strengthen their 
effectiveness in the assigned work area, or they may be voluntary and relate to the achievement of 
mutually compatible ELCHC and employee career objectives. Only full-time employees are eligible to 
participate in such activities, and only if management determines that sufficient resources are 
available and the expenditure would be appropriate in the circumstances. 

Tuition Reimbursement Policy 
After one year of employment, fulltime employees are eligible for reimbursement of up to $1,000.00 
per fiscal year in tuition expenses at accredited colleges and universities. Such tuition reimbursement 
is available only: a) after successful completion of the course with a grade of "B" (or its equivalent) or 
better; and b) if the course is applicable to the employee's position, or if the course is required as a 
prerequisite to a business and/or education related degree. 

The cost of courses which are not successfully completed with a B or better is the responsibility of the 
employee. However, reimbursement may be authorized by the CEO/OHO if the employee is unable to 
satisfactorily complete the course due to: disability; maternity leave; ELCHC initiated-action unrelated 
to conduct to the employee; or being involuntarily called into active military service. 

Requests for reimbursement of approved professional development activities must be supported by 
adequate documentation. If the employee is receiving financial aid from any other source, it must be 
applied to the identified costs prior to application of ELCHC resources. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 31 

https://1,000.00


Page 40 of 66

Professional Organization Affiliation 
Employees are encouraged to affiliate with and participate in appropriate professional organizations. 
However, the costs of participating generally must be borne by the employee. 

Employment and Background Checks 
All potential employees of the ELCHC are required to have a background screening check completed 
by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) prior to their first day of employment. This FDLE 
background screening is to be then subject to renewal background screenings every five (5) years. 
Background screening is conducted in accordance with the Level II standards set forth in Chapter 435, 
Florida Statutes. Results will be reviewed for the purposes of making decisions regarding hiring and 
maintaining employment. If the check discloses any offenses, the ELCHC will conduct an individualized 
assessment, based on the nature of the offense, the time, job responsibilities and other appropriate 
factors. 

The ELCHC participates in E-Verify. Federal law requires all employers to verify the identity and 
employment eligibility of all persons hired to work in the United States. Fai lure to provide required 
documentation or evidence of falsification or misrepresentation of any information, which 
significantly influenced the decision to employ, will result in immediate termination. 

Appointment Authority 
The appointing authority, for all employees of the ELCHC, shall be the CEO/OHD. All appointment 
letters shall include the pay rate, official title, exempt/non-exempt status of the position, starting date 
and any special conditions under which the appointment is offered. A copy of the appo intment letter 
shall be filed in the employee's personnel record. 

Performance Evaluations 
Performance evaluations are how an employer and an employee periodically assess in a systematic 
fashion the degree to which previously established task and performance objectives have been met. 
Evaluations are intended to assess performance for the period being evaluated, task and performance 
objectives for the future, and personal and career development goals. Employees are expected to 
consistently support the ELCHC's mission and adhere to the ELCHC's shared values. The mission and 
values guide how we interact with partners, providers, vendors, those we serve, our colleagues and 
the public. Successful individual work or teamwork is dependent on employees that resonate and align 
their work with the mission and va lues, both personally and professionally. 

ELCHC will conduct formal annual performance evaluations at fiscal year-end for each employee. 
Frequent informal feedback is encouraged by both supervisor and employee. The goal is to for the 
feedback to be two-way in nature. 

Evaluations shall be completed in writing in standard format(s), approved by the CEO/OHD. 
Evaluations are to be completed by the employee's immediate supervisor. Other individuals who 
regularly exercise a role in the employee's day-to-day work activities may formally or informally 
provide input into the employee's evaluation. 

The evaluation process should actively involve both the employee and the immediate supervisor(s) to 
strengthen, not only the employee's performance, but how the employee's performance contributes 
to the overall capability of the ELCHC. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 32 



Page 41 of 66

• Supervisors should share the employee evaluation with Human Resources, prior to 
sharing the evaluation with the employee, if a Performance Improvement Plan is 
required. 

• The employee will be provided a copy of the proposed evaluation for discussion with 
the immediate supervisor. To the extent appropriate, all or part of the content of this 
discussion may, at the discretion of the immediate supervisor, be incorporated into the 
final evaluation. 

• The employee shall sign the final evaluation. The employee may at that time or any 
time within 10 calendar days file a written comment covering any points with which 
he/she/they disagrees. The statement shall become a part of the evaluation. 

• The immediate supervisor shall sign the evaluation and any written statement 
submitted by an employee, such signature indicating only that he/she/they has read 
the statement. 

• The employee shall receive a signed copy of his/her final evaluation. 
• Written performance evaluations become a permanent part of the employee's 

personnel record. 

Telecommuting 
Telecommuting allows employees to work at home or at a satellite location for all or part of their 
regular work week. Telecommuting is a work alternative that may be appropriate for some employees 
and some jobs. It is not an entitlement; it is not a companywide benefit; and it does not change the 
terms and conditions of employment. This policy is intended to meet or exceed the requirements of 
relevant federal, state and local laws and regulations, and to ensure compliance with these laws. If 
practices under this Policy conflict with applicable laws and regulations, the applicable laws and 
regulations will govern. 

Telecommuting can be informal, such as working from home for a short-term project or on the road 
during business travel, or a formal, set schedule of working away from the office as described below. 
Either an employee or a supervisor can suggest telecommuting as a possible work arrangement. 

In general, only employees who have successfully completed their 90-day introductory period and 
who have not had any corrective actions for the past six months will be considered for telecommuting 
arrangements. 

Any telecommuting arrangement made will be on a trial basis for the first three months and can be 
discontinued at any time at the discretion of the company. An effort will be made to provide 30 days' 
notice of such a change to accommodate commuting, child care, and other problems that may arise 
from such a change. There may be instances, however, where no notice is possible. 

Evaluation of telecommuter performance during the trial period will include regular interaction by 
phone and e-mail between the employee and the manager to discuss work progress and problems. 
At the end of the trial period, the ELCHC will evaluate whether to continue the arrangement, 
considering such factors as work output, completion of objectives and other measures deemed 
appropriate. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 33 



Page 42 of 66

An appropriate level of communication between the telecommuter and supervisor must be agreed to 
in advance. After conclusion of the trial period, the manager and telecommuter will communicate in 
a manner and with the frequency that the ELCHC deems appropriate for the individuals involved. 

Telecommuters are expected to comply with applicable Company policies (e.g., code of conduct; 
confl ict of interest; confidentiality; health, safety & environment; workplace harassment; alcohol and 
drugs, etc.). 

The employee will establish an appropriate private, secured work environment within her/his home 
for work purposes. Visitors, including family and friends, are not to be permitted access to the work 
space. Company will not be responsible for costs associated with initial setup of the employee's home 
office such as remodeling, furniture, or lighting; nor for repairs or modifications to the home office 
space. Employees will be offered appropriate assistance in setting up a workstation designed for safe, 
comfortable work. A designated representative of the Company may visit the employee's home 
worksite, upon request, to inspect the space for possible work hazards and suggest 
modifications. Repeat assessments may occur on an as-needed basis. 

Consistent with the ELCHC's expectation of information security for employees working at the office, 
telecommuting employees will be expected to ensure the protection of confidential, proprietary and 
trade secret information about ELCHC, its partners, employees, providers, the families it serves and 
others whi le working from home. They must take steps to ensure the safety and security of such 
information, including locked file cabinets and doors, password and or encryption and other 
appropriate measures. 

Any equipment or services, (including hardware, software, modems, phone and data lines, facs imile 
equ ipment or software, photocopiers, etc.) provided for the specific purpose of telecommuting must 
be approved by the Chief Financial Offer. The Information Technology department should be 
consu lted to ensure conformity to standard. The ELCHC will maintain equipment supplied by the 
ELCHC. The employee will maintain equipment supplied by the employee. The Company accepts no 
responsibility for damage or repairs to employee-owned equipment. The Company reserves the right 
to make determinations as to appropriate equipment, subject to change at any time. 

If equipment is approved and supplied by the ELCHC it is to be used for business purposes only. The 
telecommuter will be asked to sign an inventory of all office property and agree to take appropriate 
action to protect the item(s} from damage or theft. Upon termination of employment or at the 
company's request, all company property will be returned to the ELCHC. 

Employees are expected to maintain their home workspace in a manner that is free from safety 
hazards. Injuries sustained by the employee in a home office location and in conjunction with his or 
her regular work duties are normally covered by the ELCHC's workers' compensation policy. 
Telecommuting employees are responsible for notifying the employer of such injuries as soon as 
practicable. The employee is liable for any injuries sustained by visitors to his or her home worksite. 
Telecommuting is not designed to be a replacement for childcare. Although an employee's schedule 
may be modified to accommodate childcare needs, the focus of the arrangement must be on job 
performance and meeting business demands. Prospective telecommuters are encouraged to discuss 
expectations of telecommuting with family members prior to entering a trial period. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 34 



Page 43 of 66

All exempt and non-exempt employees are required to accurately record hours worked. Any hours 
worked more than the employee's regularly scheduled hours require the advance approval of the 
employee's supervisor. Failure to obtain such approval may result in the immediate termination of 
the telecommuting arrangement. 

Temporary telecommuting arrangements may be approved for circumstances such as inclement 
weather, special projects or business travel. These arrangements will be evaluated and approved for 
special circumstances on an as-needed basis, and there should be no expectation that the 
telecommuting arrangement will continue beyond the circumstance justifying the immediate need. 

Corrective Action/ Separation 
The ELCHC expects all its employees adhere to the organization's values, to observe rules of honesty, 
professional conduct, health and safety, and fair play, and to adhere to generally accepted customs of 
good taste in their relations with one another. Employees are expected and required to conduct 
themselves in a manner on and off the job that will bring credit to the ELCHC. Employees should not 
engage in conduct that would tend to reflect adversely on the ELCHC at any time or at any place. Such 
conduct may subject such employees to the disciplinary process. 

Discipline may include verbal or written warnings, probation, suspension with or without pay, 
termination of employment, or other actions that the ELCHC, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. 
In accordance with the "at-will" nature of all employment with the ELCHC, employees may be 
discharged at any time, and for any reason. Factors that may be considered by the ELCHC when 
determining appropriate discipline include, but are not limited to, the nature and severity of the 
conduct, its frequency, the employee's tenure with the ELCHC, the employee's performance history 
and the employee's disciplinary history. However, the ELCHC is not required to consider all or any of 
these factors in any disciplinary decision. 

Employees who demonstrate conscious disregard of the ELCHC's interests and deliberately violate or 
disregard the standards of behavior we expect of our employees will be terminated immediately. 
Misconduct which demonstrates that kind of disregard or violation of our standards includes, but is 
not limited to, the following: 

1. Violation of any ELCHC policy, including the pol icies stated in this Employee 
Handbook 

2. Committing an unlawful act 
3. Disclosing confidential information 
4. Engaging in conduct that does not comply with ELCHC expectations towards another 

employee because of gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, race, 
age, color, disability, marital status, national origin, religion, genetic information, 
protected veteran or military status, or other category protected by federal, state or 
local law 

5. Willful damage to property 
6. Violence, threats or intimidation Insubordination or failure or refusal to perform 

duties assigned 
7. Unlawful possession of drugs, narcotics or intoxicants on ELCHC property or while 

performing job duties 
8. Being under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, narcotics or intoxicants while on 

ELCHC property or performing job duties, whether such influence is due to the 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 35 



Page 44 of 66

unlawful ingestion of lawful or unlawful products or abusing prescription drugs, or 
otherwise violating the Drug- Free and Alcohol-Free Workplace Pol icy 

9. Theft, pilfering, fraud or other forms of dishonesty 
10. Excessive absences or tardiness 
11. Absence or tardiness without cause or without authorization 
12. Disorderly conduct or fighting on ELCHC property, while on ELCHC business, or 

during VIO'khours 
13. Making maliciously false statements against the ELCHC or anyone associated with 

the ELCHC 
14. Falsifying a job application, record, time report form, log-in entry, or report 
15. Soliciting or accepting gratuities 
16. Possession of weapons on the ELCHC property, except in accordance with applicable 

law 
17. Making a false or misleading statement, or coercing or encouraging someone else 

to make a false or misleading statement 
18. Sleeping on the job 
19. Testing positive for unlawful drug or use of lawful drugs in an unlawful manner; or 
20. Other conduct that the ELCHC deems warrants immediate termination of 

employment 

Nothing in this policy alters the at-will nature of your employment or requires that any particular 
disciplinary measures need occur prior to termination. 

Voluntary Separation 
Any employee voluntarily separating his/her employment with the ELCHC shall provide a notice of 
separation sufficiently in advance to adequately assure the orderly transition of responsibilities and 
acquisition of alternative capabilities. 

• Employees should provide at least two (2) weeks wri tten notice of their intention to 
separate. The employee's written notice of separation shall become a permanent part 
of his/her personnel fi le. 

• Employees who have provided notice of separation may use accrued PTO only to the 
extent that utilization prior to the separation date does not disrupt requirements for 
an orderly transition. The employee shall receive a lump sum payment for such 
accrued PTO reimbursement up to a maximum of 300 hours for which he/she/they 
may be eligible. 

Exit Interviews 
An exit interview may be scheduled for each terminating employee with the objective of receiving 
ideas for improved operation or constructive criticism of organizational practices. 

Employee Personnel Records 
Human Resources is the designated custodian of personnel records and is responsible for their 
maintenance and security. Personnel records may include records of employee qualification, 
evaluation, personnel and compensation decisions, disciplinary actions and such other material as 
may be appropriate under applicable law. 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 36 



Page 45 of 66

Employees may request access to their own personnel files verbally, in person, or in writing. An
employee's inspection and/ or copying of personnel records is subject to the Florida's Public Records
Act. The custodian of the personnel records (OHD) shall be present throughout any outside
examination of the personnel record to assure that no material is removed, added, or altered during
an examination. 

The ELCHC must maintain up-to-date information about our employees for record-keeping and
emergency purposes. Any change of personnel status must be reported to the ELCHC within three
days, including changes to name, address, cell phone number, personal email address, dependents,
marital status, and emergency contact information. In addition, any employee who is arrested must
report the arrest immediately to Human Resources. 

References 
All requests for references on any former or current ELCHC employee must be referred to Human
Resources. Provided the request for reference is submitted to Human Resources, Human Resources
will ordinarily provide only the former employee's position and length of service. However, personnel
files are subject to public records laws in Florida and may be obtained by others pursuant to applicable 
law. 

No employee other than Human Resources or the CEO is authorized to give a reference on behalf of
a current or former employee 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 37 



Page 46 of 66

PAID TIME OFF AND AVAILABLE LEAVE 

Paid Time Off 
Paid Time Off (PTO) combines annual leave and sick leave, to better accommodate individual 
employee needs and is available to eligible full-time employees to provide opportunities for rest, 
relaxation and personal pursuits. It is the employee's responsibility to maintain reasonable PTO in the 
event of illness. An employee with no available PTO must obtain prior written authorization from 
his/her supervisor before taking any time off. In the event a non-exempt employee must take time off 
and has no PTO remaining, paychecks will be adjusted to reflect earnings for actual time worked. PTO 
begins accruing upon employment; accrual is not subject to completion of the introductory period. 
However, PTO may not be taken during the first 90 days of employment for purposes other than 
illness or as mutually agreed between the employee and the supervisor. 

Full-time employees are eligible to accrue PTO, as indicated in the following table: 

Accrual Rate for Full-
Accrued Time Off Time Employees (Per 

Years of Service (PTO) Pay Period) 
Less than 3 years 20 days 5.769 Hours 
3-5 Years 25 days 7.212 Hours 
6-10 years 30 days 8.654 Hours 
11 -14 years 35 days 10.096 Hours 
15+ years 40 days 11.538 Hours 

Any employee who ceases to be employed by the ELCHC will be eligible for payout of accrued PTO up 
to a maximum of 300 hours. The departing employee must have successfully completed their 90-Day 
Introductory Period. 

Employees should request planned leave, in writing, from their supervisors, no less than two weeks 
in advance of the requested time off. Requests will be reviewed based on several factors, including 
business needs and staffing requirements. Employees unable to report to work must telephone, email 
their supervisor prior to the scheduled start time, to be eligible for PTO. If their supervisor is 
unavailable when called, leave a message for them and report the absence to Human Resources. If an 
employee is out for medical reasons for three (3) or more days, in order to return to work, they must 
present a doctor's note to Human Resources releasing them to work and identifying any restrictions 
or stating there are none. 

Holidays 
The ELCHC observes the following 10 holidays for which fulltime employees will be paid: 

• New Year's Eve Day 
• New Year's Day 
• Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
• Memorial Day 
• Independence Day 
• Labor Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 38 



Page 47 of 66

• The Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve Day 
• Christmas Day 

If a holiday falls on Saturday, the holiday will be observed the Friday before the holiday. If a holiday
falls on Sunday, the holiday will be observed on the Monday after the holiday. 

Bereavement Leave 
Any full-time employee shall be granted up to three (3) full workdays paid leave to attend the funeral
of a family member. Under Bereavement Leave, a family member is defined as spouse, domestic
partner, parent, stepparent, child, stepchild, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, foster child, brother,
stepbrother, sister, stepsister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, the grandparent or grandchild of either
the employee or his/her spouse, the parent of the employee's spouse or any person regularly residing
in the employee's household. 

USERRA - Leave of Absence for Uniformed Service
The ELCHC complies with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act
("USERRA") which protects the job rights of individuals who voluntarily or involuntarily leave
employment positions to perform service in the uniformed service, as defined under USERRA. Persons
entitled to benefits under USERRA have the right to be re-employed when they leave employment
with the ELCHC to perform service in the uniformed services if they: (1) ensure that the ELCHC receives
advance written or verbal notice of their service; (2) have five years or less of cumulative service in the
uniformed service while with the ELCHC; (3) return to work or apply for reemployment in a timely
manner after conclusion of service; and (4) have not been separated from service with a disqualifying
discharge or under other than honorable conditions. If such persons are eligible for reemployment,
the ELCHC will restore them to the job and benefits they would have attained had they not been
absent due to military service or, in some cases, a comparable job. 

Anyone who (1) is a past or present member of the uniformed service; (2) has applied for membership
in the unformed service; or (3) is obligated to serve in the uniformed service, will not be denied initial
employment, reemployment, retention in employment, promotion, or any benefit of employment,
based on that status. In addition, the ELCHC will not retaliate against anyone assisting in the
enforcement of USERRA rights, including testifying or making a statement in connection with a
proceeding under USERRA, even if that person has no service connection. 

Employees who leave their jobs to perform military service, have the right to elect to continue existing
employer-based health plan coverage for themselves and their dependents for up to 24 months while
in the military, with premiums to be paid in accordance with applicable law. 

The ELCHC permits employees to take leaves of absence for performance of services in the uniformed
service in accordance with applicable law. If you have questions about your entitlement to military
leave, health insurance coverage during the leave, reinstatement rights following the leave, or other
issues relating to a military leave of absence, you may contact Human Resources. 

Civil Air Patrol Leave 
Eligible employees who serve as members of the Florida Wing of the Civil Air Patrol ("Civil Air Patrol
member") will be provided with up to fifteen (15) days of unpaid leave annually to participate in a Civil
Air Patrol training or mission. To be eligible, the employee must be a senior member of the Florida 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 39 



Page 48 of 66

Wing of the Civil Air Patrol with at least an emergency services qualification and must have been 
employed with the ELCHC for at least ninety (90) days immediately preceding the commencement of 
leave. 

An employee who needs Civil Air Patrol leave must provide his or her supervisor as much notice as 
possible of the intended dates of the beginning and end of leave. An employee taking leave under this 
policy may, but is not required to, substitute available PTO for otherwise unpaid leave. 

At the completion of leave, the employee must promptly notify the ELCHC of his or her intent to return 
to work. The ELCHC is not required to allow a Civil Air Patrol member to return to work upon the 
completion of his or her Civil Air Patrol leave if: (1) the ELCHC's circumstances have so changed as to 
make employment impossible or unreasonable; (2) employment would impose an undue hardship on 
the ELCHC; (3) the employment from which the member takes such leave is for a brief, nonrecurring 
period and there is no reasonable expectation that such employment will continue indefinitely or for 
a significant period; or (4) the ELCHC had legally sufficient cause to terminate the member at the time 
he or she commenced such leave. 

An employee who returns to work for the ELCHC following his or her Civil Air Patrol leave is entitled 
to: (1) the seniority that he or she had on the date his or her leave began and any other rights and 
benefits available as a result of such seniority; and (2) any additional seniority that the employee would 
have attained at his or her place of employment if he or she had remained continuously employed 
and any other rights and benefits available as a result of such seniority. 

Paid Parental Leave Policy 
Matern ity/paternity/adoption leave under this policy is a paid leave associated with the birth of an 
employee's own child or the placement of a child with the employee through adoption or foster care. 
Only employees who have completed one full year of service are eligible for paid parental leave. Paid 
parental leave is not charged against the employee's other paid leave benefits but runs concurrently 
with FMLA leave. The maximum amount of paid leave available is four (4) weeks per event. If both 
parents are employees, only one may access the paid benefits of this policy. Both, however, continue 
to be entitled to FMLA leave, if eligible. See Family and Medical Leave policy for additiona l information. 

Seasonal and part-time employees are not eligible for paid parental leave under this pol icy. 

The ELCHC will maintain any group health insurance coverage that the employee was provided before 
the leave on the same terms and conditions as if the employee had continued to work during the 
leave period. If the employee fails to pay his/her share of the premium, the ELCHC has no obligation 
to continue to maintain such coverage. 

The employee must provide notice of the anticipated leave as soon as possible and in any event at 
least 30 days in advance (unless a medical situation arises, in which case the employee must provide 
notice as soon as practicable) to Human Resources, provide appropriate documentation and return to 
Human Resources. 

After the four (4) weeks of the paid parental leave have been exhausted, subsequent leave will be 
covered under appropriate policies. The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) allows employees up to 
12 workweeks of unpaid leave annually. Paid leave under this policy will run concurrently with FMLA 

Updated Employee Handbook April 2021 40 



Page 49 of 66



Page 50 of 66



Page 51 of 66



Page 52 of 66



Page 53 of 66



Page 54 of 66



Page 55 of 66



Page 56 of 66



Page 57 of 66



Page 58 of 66



Page 59 of 66



Page 60 of 66



Page 61 of 66



Page 62 of 66



Page 63 of 66



Page 64 of 66



Page 65 of 66



Page 66 of 66


	Cover Page
	Tuesday, December 7, 2021
	WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS 
	Roll call/Quorum
	Pledge of Allegiance

	PUBLIC COMMENT I
	CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	CEO REPORT
	Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Initiative Update
	Provider Review Hearing Process and Update
	Inspector General Fraud Training 
	Holiday Event - Trains, Toys, & Tidings Update

	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	PUBLIC COMMENT II
	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Certificate of Acceptance and Compliance with City of Tampa 

	ADJOURNMENT

